
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING
West Covina, CA

Friday, June 30, 2017



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 
8:00 AM, JUNE 30, 2017 
Foothill Transit Administrative Office 
2nd Floor Board Room 
100 South Vincent Avenue 
West Covina, CA 91790 

Public Comment: Members of the public shall have the right to address the Board on any item of interest which is 
within the jurisdiction of the Board before or during the Board’s consideration of the item. Presentation shall not 
exceed three minutes in length. Action may be taken on any item identified on the agenda. Persons wishing to 
comment should submit a “Request to Speak” form to the Secretary. Note: ACTION MAY BE TAKEN ON ANY ITEM 
IDENTIFIED ON THE AGENDA. 
 
The public may view and obtain all written information supporting this agenda provided to the board both initially 
and supplementary prior to the meeting by calling (626) 931-7300 extension 7204 or at the agency’s offices located 
at 100 S. Vincent Ave., Suite 200, West Covina, CA 91790. Documents, including PowerPoint handouts, distributed 
to Board Members by staff or Board Members at the meeting will simultaneously be made available to the public 
upon request. 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. FOCUS ON SAFETY 
 

4. ROLL CALL:  MEMBERS CALAYCAY, HERRERA, PEDROZA, STERNQUIST, 
WARSHAW 

 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR THE JOINT MEETING - ANNUAL GOVERNING 
BOARD MEETING AND EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING, AND SPECIAL 
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING OF MAY 26, 2017 

 

7. PRESENTATIONS: 
 

7.1. Contractors’ Employee Recognition 

7.2. New & Promoted Staff 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT 



 
 
 
 
 
 
8:00 AM, June 30, 2017 
2nd Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790 
Page 2 

 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you require a disability-related modification or 
accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the 
Executive Director’s office at (626) 931-7300 extension 7204, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
If you require translation services, please contact the Executive Director’s office at (626) 931-7300 extension 7204, 
at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Si necesita servicios de traducción, por favor póngase en contacto con la oficina del Director Ejecutivo en el (626) 
931-7300, extensión 7204, al menos 48 horas antes de la reunión. 

 

如果需要翻译服务，请至少于会议前48小时致电高级主任办公室:（626）931-7300 分机 7204。 
 

Nếu Quý vị có yêu cầu dịch vụ dịch thuật, xin vui lòng liên hệ với văn phòng Giám đốc Điều hành tại (626) 931-7300 số lẻ 7204, ít 
nhất 48 giờ trước khi cuộc họp. 

 

Kung nangangailangan ka ng mga serbisyo sa pagsasalin, pakisuyong makipag-ugnayan sa opisina ng Executive Director sa (626) 
931-7300 extension 7204, ng hindi bababa sa 48 oras bago ang pulong. 
 

번역 서비스가 필요하시면 미팅 최소 48시간 이전에  임원 사무실로  (626-931-7300, 내선 번호  7204) 전화주시기 바랍니다. 
 

翻訳サービスが必要な方は、会議の48時間前までに(626) 931-7300 内線 7204のエグゼクティブディレクター事務所にご連絡くだ

さい。 

 
Եթե Ձեզ թարգմանչական ծառայությունների են հարկավոր, հանդիպումից առնվազն 48 ժամ առաջ խնդրում ենք զանգահարել 
Գործադիր տնօրենի գրասենյակ՝ (626) 931-7300 լրացուցիչ՝ 7204 հեռախոսահամարով:  
 
របសិនេបើេលាកអនកេសន ើសំុេសវាកមមបកែរបភាសា សូមទាក់ទងមកការយិាល័យនាយករបតិបតត ិ តាមេលខទូរស័ពទ៖  (626) 931-7300 
េលខបញជ នូបនត  7204 ែដលមានរយៈេពលយ៉ាងតិច 48 េម៉ាង មុនេពលកិចចរបជំុ”។ 

 

 
หากคณุต้องการบริการการแปลภาษากรุณาติดต่อสํานกังานผู้ อํานวยการบริหารท่ี (626) 931-7300 ต่อ 7204, อย่างน้อย 48 ชัว่โมงก่อนท่ีจะมีการประชมุ 

8.1. Executive Director Response to Public Comment 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR: Items 9 through 18 are consent items which may be received 
and filed and/or approved by the board in a single motion. If any member of the 
Executive Board wishes to discuss a consent item, please request that the item be 
pulled for further discussion and potential action. 
 

9. MAY 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INVESTMENT SUMMARY 
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the Financial Statements and Investment Summary year-
to-date report through May 31, 2017. The attached Financial Statements and Investment Report 
summarize Foothill Transit’s unaudited operations and financial condition as of May 31, 2017 for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. 
 

10. MAY 2017 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS REPORT  
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the May 2017 Performance Indicators Report. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
8:00 AM, June 30, 2017 
2nd Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790 
Page 3 
 

 

11. JUNE 2017 LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY 
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the June 2017 Legislative Summary. Adopt an oppose 
position on SB 268. 
 

12. TITLE VI ANALYSIS FOR OCTOBER 2017 SERVICE CHANGES  
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the Title VI analysis report for service changes that will be 
implemented in October 2017. The full report is available for viewing upon request. 
 

13.  TITLE VI ANALYSIS FOR OCTOBER 2017 FARE RESTRUCTURING  
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the Title VI analysis report for fare restructuring that will 
be implemented in October 2017. The full report is available for viewing upon request. 
 

14. FOOTHILL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING 
UPDATE 
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the Foothill Transit Administrative Offices Electric Vehicle 
Charging Update.  

 
15. CONTRACT AMENDMENT – 13 ELECTRIC BUS PROCUREMENT  

 
Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to execute Amendment No. 1 to Contract 
No. 15-055 with Proterra in the amount of Eight Hundred Ninety-Eight Thousand Eight Hundred 
Fifty-Four Dollars ($898,854) sales tax included, for design changes as requested by Foothill 
Transit. 
 

16. CONTRACT AWARD – ON-CALL ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING 
SERVICES  
 
Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate final terms and conditions 
and execute Contract No. 17-069 with RNL Interplan, Inc. (RNL) for the provision of On-Call 
Architectural & Engineering Services. 
 

17. CONTRACT AWARD – ARCADIA ELECTRIC BUS PLUG-IN CHARGING STATIONS 
 
Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate final terms and conditions 
and enter into an agreement with Proterra in an amount not to exceed $1,800,000 to design, 
construct and install 14 plug-in chargers and one shop charger at the Arcadia Operations and 
Maintenance Facility (Arcadia Facility). 



 
 
 
 
 
 
8:00 AM, June 30, 2017 
2nd Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790 
Page 4 

 

 

18. FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 TRIENNIAL REVIEW DRAFT REPORT 
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the Federal Transit Administration draft Triennial Review 
report (Attachment A). 

 

REGULAR AGENDA: 

 

19. LOS ANGELES – SAN BERNARDINO INTER-COUNTY STUDY UPDATE  
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file the Los Angeles-San Bernardino Inter-County Study 
Update. 
 

20. PROPERTY LEASE – DOWNTOWN LOS ANGELES MIDDAY LAYOVER  
 
Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to enter into a lease agreement with 
Caltrans in the amount of $28,600 per month through December 2018 for approximately 3.28 
acres of land owned by Caltrans and located at the intersection of Maple Avenue and 16th Street in 
downtown Los Angeles for use as a midday commuter bus layover. 
 

21. CONTRACT AWARD – CNG BUS PROCUREMENT 
 
Recommended Action: 1. Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate and execute an 
assignment for the purchase of 45 Gillig CNG low-floor 40-foot transit buses from San Diego 
Metropolitan Transit System (MTS) and 2. Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate and 
execute a contract in the amount of Twenty-Eight Million Four Hundred Eleven Thousand and 
Thirteen Dollars ($28,411,013), California Sales Tax included with Gillig for the purchase of 45 CNG 
low-floor 40-foot transit buses for delivery in FY 2017-2018 pursuant to the assignment from MTS. 
 

22. DUARTE CITY TRANSIT SERVICE  
 
Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to negotiate and execute an Agreement 
with the City of Duarte under which Foothill Transit would assume operation of the City’s fixed-
route bus service. 
 

23. REAL ESTATE ACQUISITION – COVINA TRANSIT CENTER AND PARK & RIDE 
PROJECT  
 
Recommended Action: Authorize the purchase of approximately 3.07 acres of land located at 1162 
N. Citrus Avenue in the City of Covina at a purchase price of $3,830,000, including 
reimbursement for demolition/grading and preliminary geotechnical evaluation for a not-to-
exceed amount $300,000 for the development of the Covina Transit Center and Park & Ride 
Project. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
8:00 AM, June 30, 2017 
2nd Floor Board Room, 100 South Vincent Avenue, West Covina, CA 91790 
Page 5 

 

 

24. CONTRACT AWARD – GENERAL MARKETING SERVICES 
 
Recommended Action: Authorize the Executive Director to award a three-year contract to Pulsar 
Advertising, Inc. for general marketing services with a not-to-exceed amount of $1,195,279. This 
contract will include two one-year options to be exercised at Foothill Transit’s sole discretion.  
  

25. TRANSIT STORE QUARTERLY REPORT  
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and file the Transit Store Quarterly Report. 
 

26. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMENT 
 

27. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 

28. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Executive Board Meeting  

scheduled for Friday, July 28, 2017 is CANCELLED 
 

The next Regular Meeting of the Executive  

Board is scheduled for 

Friday, August 25, 2017 at 8:00 a.m. 
 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Herrera at 7:50  a.m. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chair Herrera. 
 

3. FOCUS ON SAFETY  
 
Ali Showkatian, Safety Compliance Manager, presented a safety message on 
combating prescription drug abuse. 
 

4. ROLL CALL 
 
Roll call was taken by Christina Lopez, Board Secretary. 
 
Present: Member Corey Calaycay, Member John C. King, Member Gary 

Boyer, Member Manuel R. Garcia, Member Corey Warshaw, 
Member Roger Chandler, Member Richard Barakat, Member 
Tzeitel Paras-Caracci, Member Becky Shevlin, Member Margaret 
McAustin, Member Cynthia Sternquist, Member Carol Herrera, 
Member Juventino Gomez, Member Cory Moss, Member Valerie 
Munoz, Member Hector Delgado, Member Sam Pedroza 
 

Absent: Member Charlie Rosales, Member Robert Torres, Member 
Emmett Badar, Member Bob Pacheco, Member Uriel Macias, 
Member Ricardo Pacheco, Member Michael De La Torre, Member 
David Rodriguez 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as presented. 

STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS FOR THE
JOINT MEETING OF THE 

FOOTHILL TRANSIT ANNUAL GOVERNING BOARD 
MEETING AND EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING 

 
FOOTHILL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 

2ND FLOOR BOARD ROOM 
100 S. VINCENT AVENUE 

WEST COVINA, CALIFORNIA 91790 
 

Friday, May 26, 2017 
7:45 a.m. 



  Statement of Proceedings    May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 2 of 8 

6. REVIEW & APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
Approval of the minutes for the Governing Board Meeting of March 24, 2017. 
 
Motion by Member Shevlin, second by Vice Chair Calaycay, the minutes for 
the Regular Meeting of March 24, 2017 were approved. Motion carried 17-0. 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 No members of the public addressed the Foothill Transit Governing Board. 
 
8. PRESENTATIONS 
 
 8.1 SCAG Clean Cities Coalition 2017 Clean Cities Recognition Award 
 
  Executive Director Doran Barnes announced that at the Southern  
  California Association of Governments (SCAG) General Assembly, that 
  Foothill Transit was the recipient of the Clean Cities Coalition 2017 
  Clean Cities Recognition Award for its Electric Bus Program. This is the 
  first time that SCAG has presented this award. Mr. Barnes thanked the 
  Board Members who were in attendance to receive the award. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 
9. PROPOSED FARE RESTRUCTURING (GB) 

 
Recommendation: In accordance with the Executive Board’s 
recommendation, approve the fare restructuring as proposed. 
 
John Xie, Fare Revenue Manager, presented this item. 
 
Mr. Xie reported on the public outreach process in response to the proposed 
fare restructuring. During the period of March 24th through April 23rd, six 
public workshops were held throughout the service area prior to the official 
public hearing held at the Foothill Transit administrative offices on April 22, 
2017. During the comment period, Foothill Transit received 51 comments 
related to the fare changes. Twenty-eight of the comments agreeing with 
the proposal, as most customers understood the need for the fare change 
since Foothill Transit has not had a fare change since 2010. Customers were 
pleased with the proposed introduction of a day pass and inclusion of the 
Silver Streak in the day pass. Some customers expressed concern over the 
elimination of transfers, but when customers were explained the benefit of 
the day pass, most were satisfied.  
 
 



  Statement of Proceedings    May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 3 of 8 

An equity analysis was also conducted in order to comply with the federal 
Civil Rights Act. The results of the fare equity analysis show that there are no 
disparate adverse impacts on minorities and no disproportionate burdens on 
low income customers. 
 
Staff is not recommending any changes to the original proposal for the cash 
and TAP fares. Most of the comments received were positive in regards to 
using the TAP card in order to pay a lower fare. Public comment received 
expressed concern over the proposed price for a student local 31-day pass of 
$40. They felt it was a significant increase based on the current price of a 
student local 31-day pass of $33. Based on the comments, staff proposed 
that the Student Local 30-Day price change from $33 to $36 in Phase 1 and 
to $40 during Phase 2. Another addition to the proposed fare restructuring 
is to increase the Class Pass reimbursement rate from 60 cents to 75 cents 
per ride. 
 
If the Proposed Fare Restructuring is approved, implementation will take 
place in October 2017, which is in conjunction with the proposed service 
changes. From adoption to implementation, preparation activities will begin 
such as programming the fareboxes with the new fare structure, training the 
coach operators and customer service representatives, and a massive 
marketing and communications campaign will begin. 
 
Motion by Member Chandler, second by Member Paras-Caracci, to approve. 
Motion carried 17-0. 
  

10. PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 SERVICE CHANGES (GB)  
 
Recommendation: In accordance with the Executive Board’s 
recommendation, approve the proposed service changes for Fiscal Year 
2017/2018. 
 
Josh Landis, Planning Manager, presented this item. 
 
Mr. Landis reported that several proposals have been modified in response 
to the feedback received from the public. Approximately 200 comments 
were received from email, phone calls, mail, and in person at Foothill Transit 
Stores and public workshops. Additionally, informal Meet the Planner 
discussions were held at Citrus College, Pomona Transit Center, Azusa, 
Walnut, and a presentation was made to Employee Transit Coordinators in 
Pasadena. The Marketing and Communications Department coordinated 
efforts to reach out to customers on social media. 
 
The proposal for Line 187 is to split the line in half at the Azusa Gold Line 
Station. The western portion of the line will be called Line 187 and the 



  Statement of Proceedings    May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 4 of 8 

eastern portion proposed to be called 188. The feedback received regarding 
the proposed change to Line 187 was positive and there are no changes to 
this recommendation. The proposal for Line 291 is to have select northbound 
trips continue up Garey to Town and serve Baseline. There are no changes to 
the recommendation for Line 291. The proposal is to modify Line 292 and 
cancel Line 855, two low performing lines that only operate during peak 
times. After feedback from the public, staff is proposing to modify Line 292. 
The first option for the route variant is the recommendation from the May 2nd 
executive board meeting and subsequent to the Executive Board action, 
additional comments were received from customers. Staff presented an 
alternative Option B for consideration. Option B has no fiscal impact and 
would alleviate some of the traffic along Indian Hill while being able to 
service customers that travel along Claremont Boulevard. Vice Chair 
Calaycay stated that the alternative Option B is based on feedback received 
from a constituent who stated that the original option would eliminate 
service on the eastside of Claremont and there would be a lot of overlapping 
service on Indian Hill. The other benefit is that in August a Class Pass Pilot 
Program with the Claremont Colleges and Option B would provide more 
efficient services for the students. The proposal for Line 480 was to move 
the western terminus from West Covina to Eastland Center. Public comment 
was received in opposition to this change. The recommendation is to 
continue with the proposal to serve Mt. SAC and leave the starting and 
ending terminus in West Covina. The proposal for Line 493 is to move the 
eastern terminus from Diamond Bar to the Industry Park and Ride. There are 
no changes to the recommendation for Line 493. The proposal for Line 690 
is to change the routing to travel up Lone Hill to Foothill and terminate at 
the Citrus Gold Line Station. There are no changes to the recommendation 
for Line 690. The proposal to Line 494 is to cancel the line, some comments 
in opposition were received. After the proposal for Line 690 was explained, 
customers retracted their opposition, as Line 690 would become the 
preferred alternative. There are no changes to the recommendation for Line 
494. The proposal for Line 481 was to cancel the line due to most of the 
routing being outside of the Foothill Transit service area and duplication of 
L.A. Metro rail and bus lines. The proposal to Line 481 did receive comments 
in opposition, however the recommendation to cancel this line still gives 
customers an ample amount of duplicate service to meet their needs and the 
savings from this cancellation can be used to enhance other Foothill Transit 
lines within the core service area. The proposal for Line 851 was to cancel the 
line. Public comment was received in opposition to the cancellation. Staff is 
now proposing to reduce the frequency on Line 851. 
 
David Torres, Claremont resident, addressed the Governing Board. 
 
The recommendation was amended to include Option B for Line 292. Motion 
by Vice Chair Calaycay, second by Member Warshaw, to approve. Motion 



  Statement of Proceedings    May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 5 of 8 

carried 17-0. 
  

11. PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 BUSINESS PLAN AND BUDGET (GB) 
 
Recommendation: In accordance with the Executive Board’s 
recommendation, adopt Foothill Transit’s proposed Business Plan, Budget 
and Performance Targets for Fiscal Year 2017/2018. 
 
Michelle Lopes Caldwell, Director of Finance and Treasurer, presented this 
item. 
 
Ms. Caldwell reported that the business plan and budget development 
process has been under way for the past several months. She reported that 
they are not anticipating growth in ridership during 2017/2018 and have 
budgeted ridership to remain constant. The proposed budget includes $17.4 
million for fare revenues representing an approximate 8 percent increase in 
revenues over the current year estimate. The increase is in anticipation of the 
fare restructuring. Vehicle service hours will remain at the current level with 
872,171 service hours proposed. The transit operating budget is estimated at 
$98.2 million. The increase in FY2017/2018 is a result of the award of the new 
Pomona contract, which includes negotiated wage increases, and agreed 
upon increases with our existing contracts. 
 
The target for Preventable Accidents per 100,000 Miles is set at 0.70 
accidents per 100,000 miles for FY2017/2018. The target for Complaints per 
100,000 Boardings has been set for 20 complaints per 100,000 for 
FY2017/2018. The Boardings per Vehicle Service Hour is projected at 15.5 
boardings per hour for FY2017/2018. The target for Cost per Vehicle Service 
Hour is $112.63 per hour reflects the increased costs of the new Pomona 
contract award and other increases. The FY2017/2018 target for Farebox 
Recovery Ratio is 17.7 percent. The proposed fare restructuring is anticipated 
to improve the farebox recovery ratio in future years. The business plan 
includes agency wide initiatives. These initiatives were approved by the 
Executive Board in February 2017. 
 
The total FY2016/2017 budget was $150 million, while the proposed budget 
for FY2017/2018 is $161 million. This is a 7 percent increase in expenditures. 
The capital budget is nearly the same between the two fiscal years. The 
budget increase is primarily in the transit operating expense. Customer 
Service and Operations is responsible for ensuring the safe and efficient daily 
operations of Foothill Transit service. At $84.5 million this department 
budget consists of 85 percent of the total transit operating expenses of 
$98.2 million. The current five year capital program consists of 88 different 
capital projects with a total life-of-project budget of $286 million. The total 
proposed budget for FY2017/2018 is $160.9 million. The proposed operating 



  Statement of Proceedings    May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 6 of 8 

budget is $99.8 and the capital budget is $61.0 million, with 827,171 vehicle 
service hours and 13.5 million customer boardings. 
 
Motion by Board Member Chandler, second by Member Barakat, to adopt. 
Motion carried 17-0. 
  

12. RECESS BOTH MEETINGS FOR CLUSTERS TO ELECT EXECUTIVE BOARD 
MEMBERS AND ALTERNATES FOR CLUSTER 2 (AZUSA, BALDWIN PARK, 
COVINA, GLENDORA, IRWINDALE AND WEST COVINA) AND CLUSTER 3 
(ARCADIA, BRADBURY, DUARTE, MONROVIA, PASADENA AND TEMPLE 
CITY) (GB & EB)  
 
The Foothill Transit Governing Board and Executive Board recessed to allow 
Cluster 2 and Cluster 3 to elect their representatives. 

 
13. RECONVENE BOTH MEETINGS AND ANNOUNCE THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 

MEMBER AND ALTERNATE FOR CLUSTER 2 AND CLUSTER 3 (GB & EB) 
 
The Foothill Transit Governing and Executive Board reconvened to 
announce the election results for Cluster 2 and Cluster 3. 
 
Member Corey Warshaw (West Covina) announced that he was re-elected to 
serve as Executive Board Member and the Alternate is Member Gary Boyer 
(Glendora). 
 
Member Chandler announced that the representative for Cluster 3 on the 
Executive Board is Member Cynthia Sternquist (Temple City) and the 
Alternate is Member Richard Barakat (Bradbury). 
 

14. EXECUTIVE BOARD NOMINATIONS FOR FOOTHILL TRANSIT CHAIR AND 
VICE CHAIR (EB) 
 
On motion of Member Sternquist, second by Member Pedroza, unanimously 
carried, Vice Chair Calaycay was elected Chair of the Foothill Transit 
Executive Board.  
 
On motion of Chair Herrera, second by Member Sternquist, unanimously 
carried, Member Warshaw was elected Vice Chair of the Foothill Transit 
Executive Board.  
 

15. GOVERNING BOARD RATIFICATION OF THE EXECUTIVE BOARD 
NOMINATIONS FOR FOOTHILL TRANSIT CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR (GB) 
 
The Executive Board recommended ratification of the Executive Board 
Officers to the Governing Board as follows: Corey Calaycay, Chair; Corey 



  Statement of Proceedings    May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 7 of 8 

Warshaw, Vice Chair. 
 
Motion by Member Chandler, second by Member Shevlin, the Governing 
Board ratified the Executive Board nominations for Foothill Transit Chair and 
Vice Chair. Motion carried 17-0. 
 

16. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMENT 
 
Comments by Mr. Doran J. Barnes, Executive Director, Foothill Transit. 
  
Mr. Barnes reported the following: 
 
 Citrus College students voted on the Class Pass this week, and it was 

approved by 83.4 percent. 
 The Federal Transit Administration Triennial Review was conducted 

two weeks ago. In a typical triennial review there are eight findings, 
Foothill Transit had two findings. One finding is more of a regional 
finding as it’s related to the paratransit program. The reviewer 
commented that Foothill Transit was the best organized of all the 
reviews that she had conducted this year. 

 At the national level, Mr. Barnes reported that in his role as Chair of the 
American Public Transportation Association, he led the delegation that 
were the first transit professionals that met with Transportation 
Secretary Elaine Chao. Mr. Barnes thanked the Governing Board for 
allowing him to serve in that capacity. 

 The next Governing Board Meeting is scheduled for November 2017. 
He wished the Governing Board an enjoyable summer. 
 

17.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENT  
  

Comments by Members of the Foothill Transit Governing Board. 
 
 Vice Chair Warshaw announced that Foothill Transit was a sponsor of 

Temple City’s first Mayoral Color Run. Vice Chair Warshaw participated 
and thanked Mayor and Executive Board Member Cynthia Sternquist. 
Vice Chair Warshaw earned a trophy for Foothill Transit. 

 Member Sternquist thanked Foothill Transit for its support of the 
Mayoral Color Run. 

 Member Pedroza congratulated staff and Katie Gagnon for the passing 
of the Class Pass Program at Citrus College. He hopes that Cal Poly 
Pomona will be next. 

 Member Paras-Carracci congratulated Chair Calaycay and Vice Chair 
Warshaw. She thanked Member Shevlin and Member Sternquist for 
their service on the San Gabriel Valley Council of Governments and 



  Statement of Proceedings    May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 8 of 8 

thanked Member Sternquist and Member Barakat for representing 
Cluster 3 on the Foothill Transit Executive Board. She also thanked 
Customer of Service and Operations Director LaShawn King Gillespie 
for the volunteering for the Duarte-Pasadena NAACP ACT-SO 
competition and awards, and Public Affairs Manager Yoko Igawa for 
inviting her to a California Girls State event she’ll be participating in. 

 Chair Calaycay thanked Member Herrera for a great two years of 
leadership as Chair. Chair Calaycay stated he is honored to assume the 
chairmanship of Foothill Transit. 
 

18. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Adjournment for the May 26, 2017 Foothill Transit Joint Meeting of the 
Annual Governing Board Meeting and Executive Board Meeting. 
 
There being no further business, the Foothill Transit Joint Meeting of the 
Annual Governing Board Meeting and Executive Board Meeting adjourned at 
9:12 a.m. 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Calaycay at 9:20 a.m. 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 
Roll call was taken by Christina Lopez, Board Secretary. 
 
Present: Member Sam Pedroza, Member Cynthia Sternquist, Member 

Carol Herrera, Vice Chair Corey Warshaw, Chair Corey Calaycay 
 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
The agenda was approved as presented. 
 

4. REVIEW & APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 
Approval of the minutes for the Special Meeting of May 2, 2017. 
 
Board Secretary Christina Lopez stated that there was correction to Page 4 
under Item 14 Extension of Executive Director’s Employment Agreement. In 
the motion it incorrectly indicated that the item was seconded by Vice Chair 
Warshaw. The correction is that it was seconded by Vice Chair Calaycay. 
 
Motion by Vice Chair Warshaw, second by Member Herrera, the minutes for 
the Special Meeting of May 2, 2017 were approved as amended. Motion 
carried 5-0. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
5.1 Executive Director Response to Public Comment 
 

STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS FOR THE
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 

FOOTHILL TRANSIT EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

FOOTHILL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
2ND FLOOR BOARD ROOM 
100 S. VINCENT AVENUE 

WEST COVINA, CALIFORNIA 91790 
 

Friday, May 26, 2017 
9:00 a.m. 



  Statement of Proceedings   May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 2 of 7 

No members of the public addressed the Foothill Transit Executive Board. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

6. APRIL 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INVESTMENT SUMMARY  
 
Recommendation: Receive and file the Financial Statements and Investment 
Summary year-to-date report through April 30, 2017. The attached Financial 
Statements and Investment Report summarize Foothill Transit’s unaudited 
operations and financial condition as of April 30, 2017 for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2017. 
 
Motion by Member Pedroza, second by Member Sternquist, to receive and 
file. Motion carried 5-0. 

 
7. FISCAL YEAR 2016/2017 THIRD QUARTER BUDGET UPDATE  

 
Recommendation: Receive and file the Third Quarter Budget Update for the 
fiscal year ending on June 30, 2017. The attached Departmental Third 
Quarter Budget summarizes Foothill Transit’s expenditures through the third 
quarter and provides a forecast to complete the fiscal year. 
 
Motion by Member Pedroza, second by Member Sternquist, to receive and 
file. Motion carried 5-0. 

 
8. APRIL 2017 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS REPORT  

 
Recommendation: Receive and file the April 2017 Performance Indicators 
Report. 
 
Motion by Member Pedroza, second by Member Sternquist, to receive and 
file. Motion carried 5-0. 

 
9. MAY 2017 LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY 

 
Recommendation: Receive and file the May 2017 Legislative Summary. 
Adopt a support position on AB 301. 
 
Motion by Member Pedroza, second by Member Sternquist, to receive and 
file and adopt a support position on AB 301. Motion carried 5-0. 

 
 



  Statement of Proceedings   May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 3 of 7 

10. HOLIDAY SERVICE SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018  
 
Recommendation: Approve the proposed FY 2017-2018 Holiday Service 
Schedule. 
 
Motion by Member Pedroza, second by Member Sternquist, to approve. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

 
11. RESOLUTION FOR THE LOW CARBON TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM  

 
Recommendation: Adopt the following resolution: Resolution No. 2017-04: 
Authorization for the Execution of the Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program (LCTOP) Project “Foothill Transit Line 280 Expansion and 
Electrification” in the Amount of $243,693 (Attachment A). 
 
Motion by Member Pedroza, second by Member Sternquist, to adopt. Motion 
carried 5-0. 

 
12. RESOLUTIONS FOR THE CALIFORNIA TRANSIT SECURITY GRANT PROGRAM 

 
Recommendation: Adopt the following resolutions: Resolutions No. 2017-05 
and 2017-06: Authorization for the Execution of the California Transit 
Security Grant Program (CTSGP-CTAF) Project “Facility Security Upgrades” 
in the Amount of $588,948 ($327,193 for FY2015-16 and $261,755 for 
FY2016-17) (Attachments A and B). 
 
Motion by Member Pedroza, second by Member Sternquist, to adopt. Motion 
carried 5-0. 

 
13. CITY OF WEST COVINA FUND EXCHANGE  

 
Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to execute an 
assignment agreement with the City of West Covina to exchange general 
use funds for Proposition A Local Return funds. 
 
Motion by Member Pedroza, second by Member Sternquist, to approve. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

 
14. EXERCISE OF OPTION – INTERIOR PLACEMENT CARDS 

 
Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to exercise the second 
two-year option (Option Years 3 and 4) in the amount of $146,648 for the 
printing of Interior Placement Cards with Kandid Graphics (14-046). 



  Statement of Proceedings   May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 4 of 7 

Motion by Member Pedroza, second by Member Sternquist, to approve. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

 
15. REQUEST TO ISSUE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) – TRANSIT STORE 

SECURITY SERVICES  
 
Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to issue Request for 
Proposal (RFP) No. 17-098 to provide security services at Foothill Transit’s El 
Monte Transit Store. 
 
Motion by Member Pedroza, second by Member Sternquist, to approve. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

 
16. CONTRACT AMENDMENT - SMARTBUS SYSTEM SUPPORT AND 

MAINTENANCE  
 
Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to execute an 
amendment to Agreement No. 05-011 with Xerox for Software Support and 
Maintenance of Foothill Transit’s SMARTBus System. The amendment will 
extend services on a month to month basis until the replacement solution 
(Avail) is fully operational. 
 
Motion by Member Pedroza, second by Member Sternquist, to approve. 
Motion carried 5-0. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

17. SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MID-VALLEY ELECTRIC BUS RAPID TRANSIT 
(EBRT) PROJECT  
 
Recommendation: Action: Authorize Foothill Transit to serve as the lead 
agency on a technical study focusing on the Ramona Boulevard segment 
between El Monte Bus Station and the Baldwin Park Transit Center as a 
demonstration phase of the San Gabriel Valley Mid-Valley eBRT Project. 
 
Joe Raquel, Director of Planning, presented this item. 
 
Mr. Raquel reported that the project is a partnership between Foothill Transit 
and L.A. County, led by Supervisor Hilda Solis, cities of Baldwin Park and El 
Monte, the San Gabriel Valley Council of Governments, and L.A. Metro. The 
goal of the project is to build a bus rapid transit (BRT) corridor from El 
Monte Station to the 57 Freeway along Ramona and Badillo. This would 
include electric charging infrastructure at El Monte Station. A preliminary 



  Statement of Proceedings   May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 5 of 7 

study was conducted in 2010, but there is still need for a more in-depth 
study with current data to determine feasibility of the project. Funding for 
the new study is expected to come from the countywide BRT project from 
L.A. Metro.  
 
If the study shows that a BRT corridor is feasible, the first phase will be a five 
mile demonstration from El Monte Station to the Baldwin Park Metrolink 
Station. The demonstration project is expected to be funded with the San 
Gabriel Valley Measure M funds. 
 
The next steps will be to procure a technical study on the corridor, which will 
look at the corridor, project feasibility, and the project’s impact on traffic and 
parking, and the potential for transit oriented developments. The study will 
take approximately one year to complete. If feasible and if funding is in 
place, construction can begin on the first phase. 
 
Mr. Javier Hernandez from Supervisor Hilda Solis’ office addressed the 
Executive Board. Mr. Hernandez stated that this is an incredibly exciting 
project. The project would reduce greenhouse gas emissions and get people 
out of single occupancy trips. 
 
Doran Barnes, Executive Director, clarified that the recommendation is to 
authorize Foothill Transit as the lead agency. The budget that was adopted 
by the Governing Board does not have funding for this project specifically 
identified. Staff will be working with the various funding partners to identify 
funding and advance the project. This may require action by the Governing 
Board to amend the budget. 
 
Motion by Vice Chair Warshaw, second by Member Pedroza, to approve. 
Motion carried 5-0. 
  

18. ART COMPONENT AND COST SHARING FOR THE AZUSA INTERMODAL 
TRANSIT CENTER PROJECT  
 
Recommendation: Provide direction to staff regarding the cost sharing 
between Foothill Transit and the City of Azusa that should be used to 
complete the art component of the Azusa Intermodal Transit Center Project. 
 
Doran Barnes, Executive Director, presented this item. 
 
Mr. Barnes reported that Foothill Transit had partnered with the City of 
Azusa and Gold Line Construction Authority on the construction of the 
Azusa Intermodal Transportation Center, which includes parking for the Gold 



  Statement of Proceedings   May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 6 of 7 

Line and Foothill Transit customers, along with a transit center. The total 
funding for the project was $13.2 million with a funding split with Foothill 
Transit providing 44 percent of the funding and 56 percent of funding 
provided by other funding partners. Actual funding utilized was 
approximately $12.4 million. There is a remaining balance on both the City of 
Azusa and Foothill Transit commitment that was not expended.  
 
Approximately two years ago, staff brought forward a component of the 
project from the City of Azusa where the City had requested an art 
enhancement. The initial cost of the art enhancement was $170,000 and due 
to some contracting issues, the actual cost for that enhancement is $191,000, 
and the City of Azusa incurred an initial design cost of $10,000 that they 
paid directly. There was a misunderstanding on how the art component 
would be paid for and Foothill Transit was under the impression that the 
funding split that was in place during the entire project would be utilized for 
the art component and that funding would come from the $775,000 that the 
project was under budget. The City of Azusa’s understanding was that 
Foothill Transit would pay for 100 percent of the art component and that 
they would have no obligation. The City of Azusa was informed by L.A. 
Metro that the amount of funding that they had in savings could not be used 
for the art component. 
 
The City Manager for Azusa has proposed to resolve this matter and has 
proposed that the costs be split 50/50, and that Foothill Transit allow the 
City to repay Foothill Transit over a five year timeframe. That will allow the 
City to use funding that goes into their city art fund, which is based on 
developer fees. 
 
Motion by Vice Chair Warshaw, second by Member Pedroza, to amend the 
recommendation and authorize a Memorandum of Understanding with the 
City of Azusa to pay for 50 percent of the cost and repay Foothill Transit 
over a five year period. Motion carried 5-0. 
 

19. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMENT 
 
Comments by Mr. Doran J. Barnes, Executive Director, Foothill Transit. 
  
Mr. Barnes reported the following: 
 
 The July Executive Board Meeting will be cancelled. 
 Through the efforts of Vice Chair Warshaw, a meeting was held with 
 Starwood, the owners of the West Covina Plaza, about the possible 
 development of a transit center. Another meeting with Starwood 



  Statement of Proceedings   May 26, 2017 
 

 

Page 7 of 7 

representatives is tentatively scheduled for July 2017. 
 

20. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT  
  

Comments by Members of the Foothill Transit Executive Board. 
 
 Vice Chair Warshaw thanked the Executive Board for approval of the 

preliminary design of the West Covina Transit Center. The preliminary 
design made a great impression with the Starwood representatives. 
 

21. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Adjournment for the May 26, 2017 Foothill Transit Special Executive Board 
Meeting. 
 
There being no further business, the Foothill Transit Special Executive Board 
meeting adjourned at 9:45 a.m. 









Attachment A

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash 71,780,885           
Investments $27,239,000
Due from government agencies 4,798,118             
Other receivables 2,163,158             
Other assets 1,042,551             

Total Current Assets 107,023,712          

Property & Equipment (net of depreciation) 208,004,410         

Total Assets 315,028,122          

Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10,806,314           

Deferred Revenue 69,462,447           
Total  Liabilities 80,268,761            

Equity
Fund Balance:

Investment in Capital Assets 208,004,410          
Current Year Change (3,378,476)             
Excise Tax Credit
Reserve 30,133,427            

Total Equity 234,759,361          

Total Liabilities and Equity 315,028,122$        

Foothill Transit
Balance Sheet

As of May 31, 2017



Attachment B

Principal/
Interest Term Book & Market

Cash: Rate Value
Bank of the West-Reg. Checking N/A Demand Deposit $13,182,462
Petty Cash N/A N/A 400
Revolving Fund - Transit Stores N/A N/A 1,200
Bank of the West-Excise Tax N/A Demand Deposit 5,012,287
Bank of the West-Money Market 0.450% Demand Deposit 7,075,496
Bank of the West-Money Market 0.450% Demand Deposit 14,612,009
Bank of the West-Money Market 0.450% Demand Deposit 9,639,868
Bank of the West-CA Transit Assistance 0.070% Demand Deposit 252,886
Chase Business Saving 0.130% Demand Deposit 6,843,047

LAIF Investment 0.780% Demand Deposit 15,161,229
Subtotal Cash on Hand $71,780,885

Investments:
Bank of the West:

Maturity - 10/29/20 - 5yrs. 1.125% Callable Note 5,000,000
Maturity - 05/25/21 - 5yrs. 1.250% Callable Note 5,000,000
Maturity - 01/27/21 - 5yrs. 1.000% Callable Note 5,000,000
Maturity - 07/27/21 - 5yrs. 1.000% Callable Note 8,000,000
Maturity - 02/26/21 - 5yrs. 1.250% Callable Note 1,000,000

1.25-1.50% Cert. of Deposit 500,000 (1)

0.45-1.60% Cert. of Deposit 2,739,000 (2)

Subtotal Investments $27,239,000
Total Cash and Investments $99,019,885

(1) Consist of 2 Cds at $250,000 each

(2) Consist 11 Cds at $249,000 each

Summary of Cash and
Investment Account
For May 31, 2017



Attachment  C

Actual YTD May-
17

Budget YTD
May -17

Variance
Actual YTD

May - 16
Fare Revenue

Farebox $7,577,164 $9,075,000 (16.51%) $8,280,764
Pass Sales $3,167,733 $4,180,000 (24.22%) 3,462,737
TAP Cash Purse $2,813,737 $3,135,000 (10.25%) 2,822,712
MetroLink & Access Service $576,887 $660,000 (12.59%) 551,976
EZ Transit Pass $627,293 $825,000 (23.96%) 692,163
Total Operating Revenue $14,762,815 $17,875,000 (17.41%) $15,810,351

Operating Subsidies and Other
Transportation Development Act $21,029,077 $21,029,077 0.00% $18,579,746
TDA-Reserve from prior years $8,522,104 $12,443,950 (31.52%) 0
STA $1,688,324 $1,688,319 0.00% 3,096,137
Prop A 40% Discretionary $14,741,138 $14,741,138 (0.00%) 13,094,365
Prop A 40% BSCP $4,178,969 $4,178,969 0.00% 4,111,542
Prop C BSIP $838,023 $838,023 (0.00%) 822,802
Prop C Base Restructuring $1,799,985 $1,799,985 0.00% 1,767,290
Prop C Transit Service Expansion $299,954 $299,954 0.00% 294,505
Transit Security-Operating $841,523 $841,523 0.00% 766,501
Measure R Operating $9,544,080 $9,544,080 (0.00%) 8,961,049
Miscellaneous Transit Revenues $200,833 $200,833 0.00% 539,876
Total Subsidies and Other $63,684,008 $67,605,850 (5.80%) $52,033,814

Total Operating Revenue $78,446,823 $85,480,850 (8.23%) $67,844,165

Other Revenues
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets $90,081 $0 0.00% $18,514
Auxiliary Revenue $1,871,763 $1,352,083 38.44% $1,322,349
Total Other Revenues $1,961,843 $1,352,083 45.10% $1,340,863

Operating Expenses
Operations $69,062,638 $73,317,688 5.80% $58,097,198
Maintenance & Vehicle Technology $736,153 $816,422 9.83% 753,207
Marketing and Communications $1,379,071 $1,963,341 29.76% 1,366,327
Information Technology $1,856,979 $2,121,245 12.46% 1,955,998
Administration $2,319,997 $2,997,347 22.60% 2,418,671
Procurement $480,763 $788,450 39.02% 660,983
Finance $1,001,634 $1,139,555 12.10% 992,456
Planning $646,331 $901,668 28.32% 775,668
Facilities $963,258 $1,435,134 32.88% 823,657
Total Operating Expenses $78,446,823 $85,480,850 8.23% $67,844,165

Other Expenses
Property Management $327,281 $366,667 10.74% $383,166
Dial-A-Ride $784,682 $687,500 (14.14%) 619,112
Special Services $239,005 $297,917 19.77% 262,204
Total Other Expenses $1,350,967 $1,352,083 5.64% $1,264,483

Total Operating and Other Expenses $79,797,790 $86,832,933 8.10% $69,108,648

Capital Revenues
Capital Grants $27,920,338 $51,449,852 (45.73%) $19,492,070

Capital Expenditures
Capital Expenditures $27,920,338 $51,449,852 45.73% $19,492,070

Foothill Transit
Statement of Revenue and Expense

For Month Ended May 31, 2017



Page 1
Attachment D

Check 
Date Vendor Name Printed Amount

05/03/17 E00574 New Flyer of America Inc. 0.00

05/03/17 E00575 New Flyer of America Inc. 0.00

05/03/17 E00576 New Flyer of America Inc. 0.00

05/03/17 E00577 New Flyer of America Inc. 0.00

05/03/17 E00578 New Flyer of America Inc. 0.00

05/03/17 E00579 New Flyer of America Inc. 0.00

05/04/17 50021 A.G. Engineering, Inc. 1,997.85

05/04/17 50022 ACC Business 0.00

05/04/17 50023 AT and T - 105068 33.67

05/04/17 50024 AT and T - 5019 305.95

05/04/17 50025 AT and T - 5025 121.96

05/04/17 50026 AT and T - 5025 2,166.47

05/04/17 50027
Bankcard Center-Bank of the 
West

30,617.66

05/04/17 50028 C.A.T. Specialties 1,646.65

05/04/17 50029 Carol A. Herrera 197.25

05/04/17 50030 Charter Communications Inc. 168.46

05/04/17 50031
Civic Resource Group 
International Inc.

2,850.00

05/04/17 50032 Clean Energy 897,791.04

05/04/17 50033
Come Land Maintenance 
Service Company Inc.

912.19

05/04/17 50034
Commercial Door Metal 
Systems, Inc.

187.50

05/04/17 50035 Corey S. Warshaw 65.12

05/04/17 50036 Crown Castle USA Inc. 770.35

05/04/17 50037 David Reyno 1,702.74

05/04/17 50038 Day - Lite Maintenance Co. Inc. 215.98

05/04/17 50039 Diversified Transportation, LLC 73,303.14

05/04/17 50040 Downtown News 895.00

05/04/17 50041 E.C. Construction Inc. 1,518.10

05/04/17 50042 FEDEX Corp. 90.88

05/04/17 50043 Finley  and  Cook, PLLC 6,816.00

05/04/17 50044 Frontier California Inc. 518.44

05/04/17 50045
HD Supply Facilities 
Maintenance

104.27

05/04/17 50046
International City Management 
Assoc. Retirement Co

3,788.25

05/04/17 50047 Linda Garrison 164.85

05/04/17 50048 Luis A Renderos 455.00

05/04/17 50049 Panera, LLC 197.71

05/04/17 50050
Penske Toyota Scion of West 
Covina

291.31

05/04/17 50051 Proterra LLC 1,125.00

05/04/17 50052 ReadyRefresh 71.75

05/04/17 50053
Regional Chamber of 
Commerce - SGV

100.00

05/04/17 50054
Richards Watson  and  
Gershon

157.60

New Faces of the SGV Luncheon 100.00 0.00 Posted

Legal Fees 157.60 0.00 Posted

PMI march charging stations 1,125.00 0.00 Posted

Drinking Water 71.75 0.00 Posted

Executive Board Meeting 197.71 0.00 Posted

Vehicle maintenance Q.A 43796 291.31 0.00 Posted

Fitness Equipment reimbursement - Yoga blocks 164.85 0.00 Posted

Reimburse for Educational Assistance 455.00 0.00 Posted

Admin Bldg Supplies 104.27 0.00 Posted

1/31 -3/31/17 Asset Fee Allowance 307178 3,788.25 0.00 Posted

Annual support 7/1/17 to 7/1/18 6,816.00 0.00 Posted

90959537360911135 518.44 0.00 Posted

Arcadia Fare Collection Canopy Installation 1,518.10 0.00 Posted

Express Mail 90.88 0.00 Posted

03/17 Monrovia Dial a Ride 73,303.14 0.00 Posted

Advertising 895.00 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable expense - April 2017 1,702.74 0.00 Posted

4/17 Monthly Lighting Contract 215.98 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable Expenses - APTA Legislative Conf. 65.12 0.00 Posted

Tower Rental 770.35 0.00 Posted

3/17 Janitorial Supplies 912.19 0.00 Posted

Admin Bld Door Service 187.50 0.00 Posted

Website Maintenance - 04/17 2,850.00 0.00 Posted

02/17 Arcadia CNG Facility Maintenance 897,791.04 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable Expenses - APTA Legislative Conf. 197.25 0.00 Posted

Cable TV 168.46 0.00 Posted

4/17 Agency credit cards usage 30,617.66 0.00 Posted

Roadeo Shirts for the Regional Roadeo 1,646.65 0.00 Posted

Phone Service 121.96 0.00 Posted

El Monte Phone line general 2,166.47 0.00 Posted

El Monte Back line 33.67 0.00 Posted

Phone Service 305.95 0.00 Posted

Pomona Generator Replacement 1,997.85 0.00 Posted

Voided 0.00 4,095.88
Financially 
Voided

F-2526 Replacement Bus 656,599.34 0.00 Posted

F-2527 Replacement Bus 656,599.34 0.00 Posted

F-2523 Replacement Bus 656,599.34 0.00 Posted

F-2525 Replacement Bus 656,599.34 0.00 Posted

F-2518 Replacement Bus 656,599.34 0.00 Posted

F-2522 Replacement Bus 656,599.34 0.00 Posted

Phone No. 800-488-2265

B001 General Checking

This report also includes bank accounts that only have balances.

Bank Account: No.: B001, Date Filter: 05/01/17..05/31/17

Check No. Description Amount Voided Amount
Entry 
Status

Bank Account - Check Details

Thursday, June 01, 2017

Period: 05/01/17..05/31/17

Foothill Transit

FOOTHILLTRANSIT\FKUO



Page 2
Attachment D

Bank Account - Check Details

Thursday, June 01, 2017

Period: 05/01/17..05/31/17

Foothill Transit

FOOTHILLTRANSIT\FKUO

05/04/17 50055 RNL/Interplan 7,856.38

05/04/17 50056 San Gabriel Valley Economic 600.00

05/04/17 50057 Skyline Pest Control 95.00

05/04/17 50058 Standard Parking Corporation 4,955.41

05/04/17 50059 The Gas Co. 1,089.81

05/04/17 50060 Thomas J. Koontz 1,139.19

05/04/17 50061 Waste Management 250.07

05/04/17 50062 Willie J. Brooks 662.75

05/04/17 50063 Yoko Igawa 46.38

05/04/17 50064 Zonar Systems Inc. 1,201.93

05/11/17 50065
Allied Administrators for Delta 
Dental

7,113.29

05/11/17 50066
Automated Power 
Technologies, Inc.

2,499.00

05/11/17 50067 BurrellesLuce 260.00

05/11/17 50068 California Choice 47,558.67

05/11/17 50069
Chamber of Commerce - EM / 
SEM

645.00

05/11/17 50070 Christopher Pieper 142.32

05/11/17 50071 CIGNA Group Insurance 3,993.35

05/11/17 50072 City of Claremont 150.00

05/11/17 50073 City of Monrovia 250.00

05/11/17 50074 City of Temple City 1,000.00

05/11/17 50075
City of West Covina - Business 
License

13.00

05/11/17 50076 Civic Publications 4,987.00

05/11/17 50077 Complete Coach Works 180,711.63

05/11/17 50078
Dale Carnegie Training of 
Southern Los Angeles

1,595.00

05/11/17 50079
Darold D. Pieper Attorney at 
Law

7,160.00

05/11/17 50080 Digium Inc. 1,213.58

05/11/17 50081 Fleet Refinishing So Cal Wraps 14,597.38

05/11/17 50082 Freedom 424 500.00

05/11/17 50083 G4S Secure Integration LLC 10,400.92

05/11/17 50084
Glendora Public Library Friends 
Foundation

500.00

05/11/17 50085 Gotcha Media Holdings, LLC 2,655.00

05/11/17 50086 Green's Lock  and  Safe 231.45

05/11/17 50087
Hacienda Heights Kiwanis 4th 
of Jul

60.00

05/11/17 50088 Industry Mfg. Council 2,500.00

05/11/17 50089
Industry Public Utility 
Commission

1,253.54

05/11/17 50090 Jarrett Stoltzfus 391.34

05/11/17 50091 Jon House 1,920.00

05/11/17 50092 Keolis Transit Services LLC 192,415.00

05/11/17 50093 Keystone Uniform Depot 16.08

05/11/17 50094
Landmark Healthplan of 
California, Inc.

332.71

05/11/17 50095 Luis A Renderos 1,602.50

05/11/17 50096
Neighborhood Homework 
House

500.00

05/11/17 50097 Neofunds by Neopost 1,232.60

05/11/17 50098 Office Depot 1,164.94

05/11/17 50099
Our Lady of Assumption 
Church

500.00

05/11/17 50100 Panera, LLC 160.86

Sponsorship 500.00 0.00 Posted

All-day Interview  lunch 160.86 0.00 Posted

Postage 1,232.60 0.00 Posted

Office Supplies 1,164.94 0.00 Posted

Educational Assistance and Reimbursement 1,602.50 0.00 Posted

Year End Celebration Sponsorship 500.00 0.00 Posted

 Safety vest patch for Yamel 16.08 0.00 Posted

05/17 Chiropractor insurance premium 332.71 0.00 Posted

Educational Assistance and Reimbursement 1,920.00 0.00 Posted

Start Up Costs 192,415.00 0.00 Posted

3/17 Industry P&R Electricty 1,253.54 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable Expenses - TCRP 391.34 0.00 Posted

4th of July Parade 2017 60.00 0.00 Posted

Taste of the Town 2017 2,500.00 0.00 Posted

Rio Hondo 2,655.00 0.00 Posted

Lock Re-Key 231.45 0.00 Posted

03/17 Security Maintenance 10,400.92 0.00 Posted

Night on the Plaza 2017 500.00 0.00 Posted

Full Bus Wrap 14,597.38 0.00 Posted

Run 4 Their Lives 2017 500.00 0.00 Posted

4/17 Legal fees 7,160.00 0.00 Posted

Telephone Vendor ID 41583 1,213.58 0.00 Posted

Repowering & Repainting Articulated Bus #1606 180,711.63 0.00 Posted

Course for Lillian Lin and Yamel Castro 1,595.00 0.00 Posted

Business License renewal balance due 13.00 0.00 Posted

Earth Day Ad 4,987.00 0.00 Posted

Summer Reading Program 250.00 0.00 Posted

Mayors 5K Color Fun Run 1,000.00 0.00 Posted

04/17 Cigna Life Insurance Premium 3,993.35 0.00 Posted

Claremont's Fourth of July Celebration 2017 150.00 0.00 Posted

Gold Sponsorship Advertising 645.00 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable Expenses - CAPPO SD Prev Wage 142.32 0.00 Posted

Video Media Clip - 04/17 260.00 0.00 Posted

6/17 Medical insurance premium 47,558.67 0.00 Posted

06/17 Dental insurance premium 7,113.29 0.00 Posted

APC support renewal 2,499.00 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable expense 46.38 0.00 Posted

EVIR Units FOO0655 GTC- inspection service 1,201.93 0.00 Posted

5/17 Arcadia Warehouse Trash 250.07 0.00 Posted

05/17 Transit Store Plant care 662.75 0.00 Posted

4/17 Admin Building Gas 1,089.81 0.00 Posted

Interior Cards 1,139.19 0.00 Posted

4/17 Monthly Pest & Rodent Control 95.00 0.00 Posted

3/17 Parking Services 4,955.41 0.00 Posted

Arcadia Improvement- Generator Replacement 7,856.38 0.00 Posted

Economic Forecast Summit 600.00 0.00 Posted



Page 3
Attachment D

Bank Account - Check Details

Thursday, June 01, 2017

Period: 05/01/17..05/31/17

Foothill Transit

FOOTHILLTRANSIT\FKUO

05/11/17 50101 Pink Transfer Inc. 465.00

05/11/17 50102
State Compensation Insurance 
Fund

5,704.00

05/11/17 50103 Steve Hirano 95.00

05/11/17 50104
U.S. Healthworks Medical 
Group. P.C.

154.00

05/11/17 50105 Walnut Unified School District 600.00

05/11/17 50106 West Covina Lions Club 1,500.00

05/11/17 50107 Wright Express 575.29

05/11/17 50108 Zonar Systems Inc. 10,215.73

05/12/17 E00580 First Transit Inc. 0.00

05/12/17 E00581 First Transit Inc. 0.00

05/12/17 E00582 First Transit Inc. 0.00

05/12/17 E00583
International City Management 
Assoc. Retirement Co

0.00

05/12/17 E00584 New Flyer of America Inc. 0.00

05/12/17 E00585 New Flyer of America Inc. 0.00

05/12/17 E00586 Transdev Services, Inc. 0.00

05/16/17 E00587 First Transit Inc. 0.00

05/17/17 50109 ACC Business 4,095.88

05/17/17 50110
ACCO Engineered Systems 
Inc.

360.50

05/17/17 50111 Ashlien Savage 162.08

05/17/17 50112 AT and T - 5025 110.80

05/17/17 50113 AT and T Mobility ll LLC 540.00

05/17/17 50114 Athens Services 1,179.48

05/17/17 50115 Chico Bag Company 4,997.52

05/17/17 50116 Cintas Corporation #2 115.87

05/17/17 50117
Climatec Building Technologies 
LLC

1,849.75

05/17/17 50118
Come Land Maintenance 
Service Company Inc.

2,980.00

05/17/17 50119 Day - Lite Maintenance Co. Inc. 96.00

05/17/17 50120 FEDEX Corp. 75.52

05/17/17 50121 Four Nines Technologies 35,888.00

05/17/17 50122 Frank Kuo 117.13

05/17/17 50123 Frontier California Inc. 2,502.31

05/17/17 50124 GetGo, Inc. 94.18

05/17/17 50125 Grand Car Wash 469.53

05/17/17 50126 Home Depot Credit Services 814.11

05/17/17 50127 IBI Group 33,147.00

05/17/17 50128 Iron Mountain Inc. 113.92

05/17/17 50129 Metrolink 50,790.25

05/17/17 50130 Mobile Relay Associates Inc. 20,154.65

05/17/17 50131 RNL/Interplan 177.50

05/17/17 50132 Socal Office Technologies 666.44

05/17/17 50133 Suburban Water Systems 971.27

05/17/17 50134 Tanya Marie Pina 206.41

05/17/17 50135 The Hartford 100.00

05/17/17 50136 Thomas J. Koontz 78.30

05/17/17 50137 Thompson Coburn LLP 82,157.13

05/17/17 50138 Tri - Signal Integration, Inc. 982.50

05/17/17 50139 Verizon Business - 15043 1,351.12SBS Tower MPLS 1,351.12 0.00 Posted

3/17 Legal Services - Covina & West Covina P&R 82,157.13 0.00 Posted

5/17 Industry P&R Quarterly Sprinkler System 
Test

982.50 0.00 Posted

Surety Bond renewal for Luis Renderos 100.00 0.00 Posted

Business Cards 78.30 0.00 Posted

4/17 Admin Bldg Water 971.27 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable expense - Bus Roadeo & Para 
Transit 

206.41 0.00 Posted

Arcadia Improvement- Generator Replacement 177.50 0.00 Posted

Copy machine 666.44 0.00 Posted

04/17 Metrolink passes 50,790.25 0.00 Posted

Mobile Radio Digital Airtime 20,154.65 0.00 Posted

3/1-3/31/17 CAD/AVL Replacement Consulting 33,147.00 0.00 Posted

4/17 Shredding Services 113.92 0.00 Posted

Vehicle washing 469.53 0.00 Posted

4/17 Facility Supplies 814.11 0.00 Posted

Fax Line 2,502.31 0.00 Posted

Open voice 94.18 0.00 Posted

Fare Restructuring Study - Task 3-6 35,888.00 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable expense - FTA Financial 
Management 

117.13 0.00 Posted

5/17 Monthly Lighting Contract 96.00 0.00 Posted

Express Mail 75.52 0.00 Posted

4/1/17 - 6/30/17 HVAC Software Maintenance 1,849.75 0.00 Posted

5/17 Janitorial Services 2,980.00 0.00 Posted

Re-Order of Hawaiian Ocean Chico Bag 4,997.52 0.00 Posted

First Aid Kit Supplies 115.87 0.00 Posted

Avail Cellular 540.00 0.00 Posted

5/17 Admin Trash Service & Parking Lot 
Sweeping 

1,179.48 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable expense - Cal-SHRM Leg Conf 162.08 0.00 Posted

El Monte phone line (626)452-1579 & (626)452-
1587

110.80 0.00 Posted

Internet 4,095.88 0.00 Posted

4/17 Admin Bldg HVAC Maintenance 360.50 0.00 Posted

04/1-15 Arcadia Contractor Services 808,354.22 0.00 Posted

 Pomona February 2017 PMI's 16,500.00 0.00 Posted

F-2528 Replacement Bus 656,599.34 0.00 Posted

F-2529 Replacement Bus 656,599.34 0.00 Posted

04/1-15 Pomona Contractor Services 664,217.82 0.00 Posted

Payroll ending 5/6/17 retirement funds 37,583.27 0.00 Posted

04/1-15 699 Extra Route Miles 1,824.00 0.00 Posted

04/08/2017 Towing bus for Earth Day event 600.00 0.00 Posted

Vehicle Fueling May 2017 575.29 0.00 Posted

V3 -3G- UPGRADES 10,215.73 0.00 Posted

Walnut High School Baseball 2016/2017 Season 600.00 0.00 Posted

Night on the Town - sponsorship 1,500.00 0.00 Posted

17-053 Legal Notice 95.00 0.00 Posted

PE DOT - Josh Landis 154.00 0.00 Posted

Funiture Moving 465.00 0.00 Posted

5/17 Workers Comp Insurance Premium 5,704.00 0.00 Posted



Page 4
Attachment D

Bank Account - Check Details

Thursday, June 01, 2017

Period: 05/01/17..05/31/17

Foothill Transit

FOOTHILLTRANSIT\FKUO

05/17/17 50140 Verizon Wireless 4,553.67

05/25/17 50141-50183 Various 0.00

05/25/17 50184 4imprint Inc. 7,731.26

05/25/17 50185 Andrew John Papson 105.47

05/25/17 50186 AT and T - 5019 305.95

05/25/17 50187 AT and T - 5025 2,163.59

05/25/17 50188
California Chamber of 
Commerce

769.00

05/25/17 50189 Charter Communications Inc. 170.98

05/25/17 50190
CORT Business Services 
Corporation

2,255.76

05/25/17 50191 Day - Lite Maintenance Co. Inc. 281.28

05/25/17 50192 Donald Luey 863.65

05/25/17 50193 ENO Transportation Foundation 7,500.00

05/25/17 50194 Finley  and  Cook, PLLC 399.95

05/25/17 50195 Frontier California Inc. 179.39

05/25/17 50196
Industry Public Utility 
Commission

1,112.62

05/25/17 50197 John Xie 695.47

05/25/17 50198 Joseph Raquel 127.47

05/25/17 50199 Lazar  and  Associates 870.45

05/25/17 50200 Lillian Lin 265.82

05/25/17 50201 Newage PHM, LLC 7,276.75

05/25/17 50202 Promocentric, Inc. 4,991.67

05/25/17 50203 Pulsar Advertising 10,702.00

05/25/17 50204 RNL/Interplan 76,414.18

05/25/17 50205 Rodger's Food Service 418.69

05/25/17 50206 Rotary Club of Walnut Valley 135.20

05/25/17 50207 Roy Jorgensen Associates, Inc. 5,000.00

05/25/17 50208 San Gabriel Valley Newspaper 2,893.00

05/25/17 50209 Sharlane Bailey 2,786.00

05/25/17 50210 Sing Tao Daily 594.00

05/25/17 50211 Skyline Pest Control 95.00

05/25/17 50212 Standard Parking Corporation 3,397.35

05/25/17 50213 Thomas J. Koontz 190.31

05/25/17 50214 Toyo Landscaping Company 11,398.00

05/25/17 50215 Verizon Business - 15043 19,828.83

05/25/17 50216 Virgilio Victorio 459.65

05/25/17 50217 Walnut Valley Water District 125.72

05/26/17 E00588 First Transit Inc. 0.00

05/26/17 E00589 First Transit Inc. 0.00

05/26/17 E00590 First Transit Inc. 0.00

05/26/17 E00591
International City Management 
Assoc. Retirement Co

0.00

05/26/17 E00592 Transdev Services, Inc. 0.00

05/26/17 E00593 Transdev Services, Inc. 0.00

05/26/17 E00594 Transdev Services, Inc. 0.00

05/26/17 E00595 Transdev Services, Inc. 0.00

05/26/17 E00596 Transdev Services, Inc. 0.00

05/30/17 50218 Elerts Corporation 42,485.00

05/30/17 50219 Linda Garrison 325.00

2,027,993.52General Checking 10,476,675.12 176,600.34

3 Small Transit Multi-Year Subscription 42,485.00 0.00 Posted

Yoga instruction 325.00 0.00 Posted

Repowering for Artic bellows 20,887.38 0.00 Posted

05/17 Management Services fee 160,455.72 0.00 Posted

Repowering for 1708 79,022.00 0.00 Posted

Repowering for 1711 77,608.73 0.00 Posted

Payroll ending 5/16/17 retirement funds 38,079.85 0.00 Posted

Special Services Regional Roadeo 878.10 0.00 Posted

04/16-30 Pomona Contractor Services 1,096,951.45 0.00 Posted

04/16-30 Pomona 699 Extra Miles 1,824.00 0.00 Posted

4/17 Industry P&R Fire Sprinkler Water 125.72 0.00 Posted

Pomona 01/17 PMI's 14,500.00 0.00 Posted

800 Lines 19,828.83 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable expense - FTA FMO Workshop 459.65 0.00 Posted

Hand Held Signs for May Day 190.31 0.00 Posted

Annual Tree Trimming 11,398.00 0.00 Posted

5/17 Pest & Rodent Control 95.00 0.00 Posted

4/17 Parking Services 3,397.35 0.00 Posted

Educational assistance and reimbursement 2,786.00 0.00 Posted

Advertising 594.00 0.00 Posted

Property Condition Assessment - Pomona O&M 5,000.00 0.00 Posted

Advertising 2,893.00 0.00 Posted

Annual Governing Board Meeting 418.69 0.00 Posted

Joe's Rotary dues 135.20 0.00 Posted

04/17 Consulting services 10,702.00 0.00 Posted

A&E Services - West Covina P&R 76,414.18 0.00 Posted

06/17 TS 2 Office lease 7,276.75 0.00 Posted

Reorder of Butterfly Bus USB Drive 4,991.67 0.00 Posted

04/17 Interpreting services 870.45 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable Expenses - NTI Procurement I 265.82 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable expense - Pomona Turnover/RFID 
Conf

695.47 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable expense - NTI Training 127.47 0.00 Posted

Arcadia phone line 179.39 0.00 Posted

4/17 Industry P&R Electricity 1,112.62 0.00 Posted

Transit Mid-Manager Seminar - Yoko Igawa/John 
Xie

7,500.00 0.00 Posted

Navigator 2016 Upgrade - Consulting services 399.95 0.00 Posted

Lighting repair 281.28 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable Expense -IT Interop Conference 863.65 0.00 Posted

Cable TV Service 170.98 0.00 Posted

Office Furniture 2,255.76 0.00 Posted

El Monte Phone Line 2,163.59 0.00 Posted

7/17-7/18 Membership Renewal #690569 769.00 0.00 Posted

Reimbursable expense - CPUC May Meeting 105.47 0.00 Posted

Phone services 305.95 0.00 Posted

Reorder of Lunch Koozies 7,731.26 0.00 Posted

Voided 0.00 Voided

Cell Phone 4,553.67 0.00 Posted





























Goal Performance Indicator May 2017 Met Target? May 2016

% Improvement 

Over Same Month 

Last Year

FY 2016-2017 YTD Met Target? FY 2015-2016 YTD
% Improvement 

YTD

 Total Boardings 1,145,967 - 1,104,659 4% 12,506,915 - 12,555,837 (0%)

 Vehicle Service Hours 73,905 - 67,541 9% 799,368 - 730,552 9%

 Total Fare Revenue $1,299,506 - $1,364,712 (5%) $14,762,815 - $15,810,351 (7%)

 Total Operating Expense $7,628,511 - $6,325,259 21% $78,446,653 - $68,021,085 15%

Safety  Preventable Accidents per 100,000 Miles 0.48 Yes 0.79 (40%) 0.76 No 0.88 (14%) ≤ 0.70

 Schedule Adherence 81.6% No 85.0% (4%) 81.3% No 83.1% (2%) ≥ 83%

 Miles Between Mechanical Service Interruptions 29,377 Yes 30,933 (5%) 30,055 Yes 24,435 23% ≥ 20,000

 Complaints per 100,000 Boardings 23.3 No 13.7 71% 20.9 No 17.9 16% ≤ 16.00

 Average Hold Time (Seconds) 18 Yes 17 6% 23 Yes 25.58 (12%) ≤ 40

 Boardings per Vehicle Service Hour 15.5 No 16.4 (5%) 15.6 No 17.30 (10%) ≥ 16.8

 Average Weekday Boardings 45,573 No 44,817 2% 46,020 No 45,768 1% ≥ 49,638

 Farebox Recovery Ratio 17.0% No 21.7% (21%) 18.8% No 23.34% (19%) ≥ 21.0%

 Average Cost per Vehicle Service Hour $103.22 Yes $93.65 10% $98.14 Yes $93.74 5% ≤ $105.17

Red = did not meet target

Effectiveness

Efficiency

Foothill Transit 

Performance 

Target

May 2017

Overall System 

Performance

Customer Service

Key Performance Indicators

Attachment A



Goal Performance Indicator May 2017 May 2016

% Improvement 

Over Same Month 

Last Year

FY 2016-2017 YTD FY 2015-2016 YTD
% Improvement 

YTD

Average fare per boarding $1.13 $1.24 (8.2%) $1.18 $1.26 (6%)

Average cost per boarding $6.66 $5.73  16.3% $6.27 $5.42  16%

Average subsidy per boarding $5.52 $4.57  21.0% $5.09 $4.18  22%

Total vehicle miles 1,468,866 1,391,999  5.5% 16,171,794 14,567,407  11%

Vehicle service miles 1,062,301 975,028  9.0% 11,482,181 10,586,316  8%

Total vehicle hours 94,437 87,403  8.0% 1,055,869 955,022  11%

In-service speed (mph) 14.4 14.4 (0.4%) 14.37 14.6 (2%)

Boardings per vehicle service mile 1.08 1.13 (4.8%) 1.09 1.19 (8%)

Foothill Transit 
Operations Report

May 2017

Operations

Attachment B







Attachment A 
2017 Legislation Summary 

Current as of 6/22/2017 

       

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold)
Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside Agency 

Positions 
Recommended 

Position 

AB 1 Frazier AB 1 and SB 1 are $6 billion/year proposals, 
like the proposals that preceded them in the 
2015-2016 Special Session on Transportation 
Infrastructure, include a combination of new 
revenues, additional investments of Cap and 
Trade auction proceeds, accelerated loan 
repayments, Caltrans efficiencies & 
streamlined project delivery, accountability 
measures, and constitutional protections. 
 
These proposals would continue to fund 
public transit by doubling the Cap and Trade 
allocation to the Transit and Intercity Rail 
Capital Program and Low Carbon Transit 
Operations Program; and, each triples the 
incremental diesel sales tax going to the 
State Transit Assistance program, from 
1.75% to 5.25% (an effective increase of 
3.5%).  

This bill could lead to increased 
state funding for Foothill 
Transit. 

See SB 1. CTA - Support Support
Position 
Adopted 
2/24/2017 

AB 17 Holden This bill would create a Transit Pass Program 
to provide free or reduced-fare transit 
passes to public school, community college, 
California State University and University of 
California students.  This program would join 
the Transit and Intercity Rail Capitol 
Program and Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program as a transit related Cap and Trade 
expenditure once appropriated from the 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund. Recent 
amendments (May 31, 2016) have removed a 
dedicated funding amount for this program.  
  

This bill could help support 
Foothill Transit’s Class Pass 
Program. 
 

Senate Committee on 
Transportation 

Support 
Position 
Adopted 
2/24/2017 

AB 301 Rodriguez Existing law prohibits a person from 
operating a commercial motor vehicle unless 
the person has passed a written and driving 
test for the operation of a commercial motor 
vehicle that complies with specified federal 
standards and any other requirements 
imposed by the Vehicle Code. AB 301 would 
require the Department of Motor Vehicles, 
by June 1, 2019, to ensure that the maximum 

This bill would assist Foothill 
Transit’s Operating Contractors 
from lengthy delays in hiring 
coach operators due to 
difficulty obtaining the 
appropriate license. 

 

Assembly Committee 
on Appropriations 

CTA - Support Support
Position 
Adopted 
6/26/2017 



2017 Legislation Summary 
Current as of 6/22/2017 

       

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold)
Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside Agency 

Positions 
Recommended 

Position 

wait time to obtain an appointment to take 
the driving skills test to operate a 
commercial motor vehicle does not exceed 7 
days. The bill would require the department, 
by June 1, 2018, to submit a report to the 
budget and transportation committees of 
the Legislature detailing how the 
department intends to achieve the 7-day 
maximum wait time. The bill would require 
the report to include, among other 
components, the methodology the 
department intends to use to collect and 
monitor wait times, and an implementation 
timeline for the department’s 
recommendations.   

AB 1113 Bloom This bill would amend the statutes governing 
the State Transit Assistance (STA) program 
to clarify several ambiguities that led to the 
State Controller’s Office’s (SCO) 2016 
administrative changes. These changes 
implemented new calculation and allocation 
methodologies for the STA program, 
suddenly changing the way these vital funds 
are distributed. These STA grant funds are 
vital to the ongoing operations and capital 
projects of about 145 public transit systems 
statewide. 

This bill would help bring 
consistency and clarity to 
Foothill Transit’s budgeting 
process related to the STA 
Program. 
 

Assembly Committee 
on Rules 

CTA - Support Support
Position 
Adopted 
3/24/2017 

ACA 5 Frazier This measure would add Article XIXD to the 
California Constitution to require revenues derived 
from vehicle fees imposed under a specified 
chapter of the Vehicle License Fee Law to be used 
solely for transportation purposes. The measure 
would prohibit these revenues from being used for 
the payment of principal and interest on state 
transportation general obligation bonds that were 
authorized by the voters on or before November 8, 
2016. The measure would prohibit the revenues 
from being used for the payment of principal and 
interest on state transportation general obligation 
bonds issued after that date unless the bond act 
submitted to the voters expressly authorizes that 
use. The measure would also prohibit the 
Legislature from borrowing these revenues, except 

This bill would protect Foothill 
Transit’s dedicated state 
transportation funds from being 
diverted for other purposes.   
 

Passed by the Legislature 
and awaiting action by the 
Governor.  

CTA - Support Support 
Position 
Adopted 
5/2/2017 



2017 Legislation Summary 
Current as of 6/22/2017 

       

(Amendments and Bills with updated status or requesting action are indicated in bold)
Bill No. Author Analysis Potential Impacts Location Outside Agency 

Positions 
Recommended 

Position 

as specified, or using them for purposes other than 
transportation purposes.  

SB 1 Beall See AB 1. SB 1 adds another 0.50% sales tax 
on diesel fuel increment, for intercity and 
commuter rail purposes. 
 

This bill could lead to increased 
state funding for Foothill 
Transit. 

Signed by the 
Governor & Chaptered 
by the Secretary of 
State - 4/28/2017 

CTA - Support Support 
Position 
Adopted 
2/24/2017 

SB 268 Mendoza This bill would change the Los Angeles County 
Metropolitan Transportation Authority (Metro) 
Board of Directors current governance 
structure, including an increase in members 
from 16 to 21.  The original composition of the 
Metro Board was the result of a lengthy, local 
process in which all local stakeholders were 
brought together to develop a consensus. This 
bill attempts to undermine existing law and 
unilaterally overrule a locally agreed upon 
governance structure.  The restructuring of a 
local board should be done at the local level 
and not at the state level and sets a troubling 
precedent for local entities.   

If this bill becomes law, it would 
be a step towards putting the 
Foothill Transit JPA at risk of 
being altered by state legislation 
at any time with the local 
governing agencies having no 
control in the matter. 
 

Assembly Committee 
on Local Government 

Metro - Oppose Oppose

 































Attachment A 
 

List and Pricing of Additional Equipment and Exterior Painting and Related Work 
 
   
Foothill Transit Bus Quantity:  13  
  

  Price / Bus Extended Price 
XR Catalyst Bus Unit Price $  789,000.00  $  10,257,000.00
     
Components Added:    
1. Exterior Paint $    20,686.00   
2.  TSI - 9 IP Cameras $     10,242.00   
4.  Zonar - procure/ install $           715.00   
5.  REI -PA System $         488.00   
6.  Safety Vision Monitor $        1,374.00   
7.  Kenwood Radio  $       1,134.00  
Subtotal of added components: $   34,639.00  $      450,307.00 
Subtotal Bus Price: $ 823,639.00  $  10,707,307.00 
Less Cost of ADA Equipment: (per bus for tax) $    10,499.00   
Bus Price for Tax Purposes $   813,140.00  $  10,570,820.00 
LA County Sales & Use Tax (9.25%): $     75,215.45 $      977,800.85 
Total Contract Value with Tax: $  898,854.45 $     11,685,107.85 

 















Attachment A



 

 

Attachment A

DRAFT REPORT 

FISCAL YEAR 2017 
TRIENNIAL REVIEW 

 

of  

Foothill Transit 
West Covina, CA 

Recipient ID: 5551 

Performed for: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

REGION IX 

Prepared By: 

Advanced Systems Technology & Management, Inc. 
 

under subcontract to Qi Tech, LLC 
 
 
 

Scoping Meeting Date: January 27, 2017 
Site Visit Date: May 10-11, 2017 
Draft Report Date: June 7, 2017 

 



 

 

Table	of	Contents	

I.  Executive	Summary ............................................................................................................... 1 

II.  Review	Background	and	Process ......................................................................................... 2 

1.  Background ..................................................................................................................................... 2 

2.  Process ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

3.  Metrics ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

III.  Grantee	Description ............................................................................................................... 4 

1.  Organization ................................................................................................................................... 4 

2.  Services ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

3.  Grant	and	Project	Activity ............................................................................................................. 5 

IV.  Results	of	the	Review ............................................................................................................ 6 

1.  Financial	Management	and	Capacity ............................................................................................ 6 

2.  Technical	Capacity .......................................................................................................................... 6 

3.  Maintenance ................................................................................................................................... 6 

4.  Americans	with	Disabilities	Act .................................................................................................... 6 

5.  Title	VI ............................................................................................................................................. 7 

6.  Procurement ................................................................................................................................... 7 

7.  Disadvantaged	Business	Enterprise ............................................................................................. 8 

8.  Legal ................................................................................................................................................ 8 

9.  Satisfactory	Continuing	Control .................................................................................................... 9 

10.  Planning/Program	of	Projects ....................................................................................................... 9 

11.  Public	Comment	on	Fare	Increases	and	Major	Service	Reductions ........................................... 9 

12.  Half	Fare .......................................................................................................................................... 9 

13.  Charter	Bus ..................................................................................................................................... 9 

14.  School	Bus ..................................................................................................................................... 10 

15.  Security ......................................................................................................................................... 10 

16.  Drug	Free	Workplace	and	Drug	and	Alcohol	Program .............................................................. 10 

17.  Equal	Employment	Opportunity ................................................................................................. 10 

V.  Summary	of	Findings ........................................................................................................... 11 

VI.  Attendees .............................................................................................................................. 12 

VII.  Appendices ........................................................................................................................... 13 



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   1 | 13 

I. Executive	Summary	

This report documents the Federal Transit Administration’s (FTA) Triennial Review of Foothill 
Transit in West Covina, California. The review was performed by Grace Stegall of AdSTM, Inc., 
under subcontract to Qi Tech, LLC. During the site visit, administrative and statutory requirements 
were discussed and documents were reviewed. Foothill Transit’s transit facilities were toured to 
provide an overview of activities related to FTA-funded projects. 

The Triennial Review focused on Foothill Transit’s compliance in 17 areas. Deficiencies were 
found in the areas listed below. 

Review Area 
Deficiencies 

Code Description 
Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) 

D-165 
Insufficient oversight of ADA complementary 
paratransit service requirements 

Procurement 
D-183 

No verification that excluded parties are not 
participating 

D-271 Lacking required cost/price analysis 

	

  	



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   2 | 13 

II. Review	Background	and	Process	

1. Background	

The United States Code, Chapter 53 of Title 49 (49 US.C. 5307(f) (2)) requires that “At least once 
every three years, the Secretary shall review and evaluate completely the performance of a grantee 
in carrying out its program, specifically referring to compliance with statutory and administrative 
requirements.” This Triennial Review was performed in accordance with FTA procedures 
(published in FTA Order 9010.1B, April 5, 1993). 

The Triennial Review includes a review of the grantee’s compliance in 17 areas. The basic 
requirements for each of these areas are summarized in Section IV. 

This report presents the findings from the Triennial Review of Foothill Transit. The review 
concentrated on procedures and practices employed during the past three years; however, coverage 
was extended to earlier periods as needed to assess the policies in place and the management of 
grants. The specific documents reviewed and referenced in this report are available at FTA’s 
regional office or the grantee’s office. 

2. Process	

The Triennial Review process includes a pre-review assessment, a review scoping meeting with 
the FTA, and an on-site visit to the grantee’s location. The review scoping meeting was conducted 
with the FTA Los Angeles Metropolitan Office on January 27, 2017. Necessary files retained by 
the regional office were sent to the reviewer electronically. A grantee information request and 
review package was sent to Foothill Transit advising it of the site visit and indicating information 
that would be needed and issues that would be discussed. The site visit to Foothill Transit occurred 
on May 10-11, 2017. 

The onsite portion of the review began with an entrance conference, at which the purpose of the 
Triennial Review and the review process were discussed. The remaining time was spent discussing 
administrative and statutory requirements and reviewing documents. The reviewer visited Foothill 
Transit’s transit center and maintenance facility to provide an overview of activities related to 
FTA-funded projects. 

The reviewer examined a sample of maintenance records for FTA-funded vehicles and equipment. 
Upon completion of the review, FTA and the reviewer provided a summary of preliminary findings 
to Foothill Transit at an exit conference. Section VI of this report lists the individuals participating 
in the review. 



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   3 | 13 

3. Metrics	

The metrics used to evaluate whether a grantee is meeting the requirements for each of the areas 
reviewed are: 

 Not Deficient: An area is considered not deficient if, during the review, no findings 
were noted with the grantee’s implementation of the requirements.  

 Deficient: An area is considered deficient if any of the requirements within the area 
reviewed were not met. 

 Not Applicable: An area can be deemed not applicable if, after an initial assessment, 
the grantee does not conduct activities for which the requirements of the respective area 
would be applicable.  



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   4 | 13 

III. Grantee	Description	

1. Organization	

Foothill Transit provides transit service in the San Gabriel and Pomona Valleys of Los Angeles 
County, serving 22 cities and some unincorporated areas of the county. Foothill Transit’s 
governing organization consists of one elected official from each of the 22 cities (general 
membership) and three members appointed by Los Angeles County. The general membership 
meets periodically. An Executive Board that meets monthly consists of four members elected by 
the general membership and one appointed by Los Angeles County. The service area population 
is approximately 1,684,088 persons. 

Foothill Transit has two contracts for fixed-route service. The service contractors are Transdev 
and First Transit. Complementary paratransit service is provided throughout Los Angeles County 
by Access Services, Inc. 

2. Services	

Foothill Transit operates 39 local and express fixed routes and carries 14 million customers each 
year. The express service includes Lines 481 and 690, and the Silver Streak, a bus rapid transit 
(BRT) system. Foothill Transit serves an area of 327 square miles. Service is provided 24 hours a 
day, seven days a week. The complementary paratransit service operates during the same days and 
hours of service as the fixed routes. 

The basic adult fare for bus service is $1.25. A reduced fare of $0.50 for local service is offered to 
senior citizens, persons with disabilities, and persons with a Medicare card during all hours. The 
Silver Streak has a fare of $2.45 with a discounted fare of $1.15. The fare for Lines 481 and 690 
is $2.75, and for other peak-period commuter bus service, the fare is $4.90. Foothill Transit has 
pass programs that can reduce the costs of service. 

Foothill Transit operates a fleet of 370 buses for fixed-route service. Its bus fleet consists of 
compressed natural gas (CNG)-powered buses and electric buses. The current peak requirement is 
for 318 vehicles. Foothill Transit operates from two operations and maintenance facilities. The 
facility located in Arcadia is managed by First Transit, and Transdev manages the Pomona facility. 
The central administrative headquarters is located at 100 South Vincent Avenue in West Covina. 
All facilities are FTA-funded.  

Foothill Transit’s National Transit Database Report for fiscal year 2016 provided the following 
financial and operating statistics for its fixed-route and ADA complementary paratransit service:  

Operating Statistic Fixed-Route 
Service 

Unlinked Passengers 13,584,135 
Revenue Hours 799,144 
Operating Expenses $76,296,638 



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   5 | 13 

3. Grant	and	Project	Activity	

Below is a list of Foothill Transit’s open grants at the time of the review. 

Grant Number 
Grant 

Amount 
Year 

Executed Description 

CA-04-0093 $9,526,393 2010 San Gabriel Valley Park and Ride 

CA-2016-054 $27,356,060 2016 Acquisition of Revenue Vehicles 

Projects Completed 

During the review period, Foothill Transit completed the following noteworthy projects: 

 Constructed the Azusa Intermodal Transit Center and opened it for operation on January 4, 
2016 

 Remodeled the Puente Hills Transit store including installation of automatic people 
counters in all five transit stores to measure customer activity 

 Completed exterior and interior improvements at the Arcadia Operations and Maintenance 
facility to maintain a state of good repair 

 Purchased 30 new coaches in 2015 and 30 new coaches in 2016. 

Ongoing Projects 
Foothill Transit is currently in the process of implementing the following noteworthy projects: 

 Procurement of CAD/AVL system for the entire fleet to upgrade customer service, 
on-board communications and bus tracking 

 Procurement of 30 CNG buses 

 Procurement of an operations and maintenance contract for transit service at the Pomona 
Facility 

 Preliminary design for a transit center and park and ride facility in the City of Covina. 

Future Projects 
Foothill Transit is planning the following noteworthy projects in the next three to five years: 

 Procurement of 185 buses to replace retirement-eligible buses to begin electrification of 
the entire fleet by 2030 

 Design and construction of a transit center at Mt. San Antonio College (Mt. SAC) in 
Walnut, the largest community college in California 

 Design and construction of a transit center and transit store in West Covina 

 Installation of bus charging stations at the Arcadia yard and the Azusa Intermodal Transit 
Center 

 Procurement of 30 CNG Replacement Buses 

  



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   6 | 13 

IV. Results	of	the	Review	

1. Financial	Management	and	Capacity		

Basic Requirement: The grantee must demonstrate the ability to match and manage FTA grant 
funds, cover cost increases and operating deficits, cover maintenance and operational costs for 
FTA-funded facilities and equipment, and conduct and respond to applicable audits. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Financial Management and Capacity. 

2. Technical	Capacity	

Basic Requirement: The grantee must be able to implement FTA-funded projects in accordance 
with the grant application, FTA Master Agreement, and all applicable laws and regulations, using 
sound management practices. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Technical Capacity. 

3. Maintenance		

Basic Requirement: Grantees and subrecipients must keep federally funded vehicles, equipment, and 
facilities in good operating condition. Grantees and subrecipients must keep Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) accessibility features on all vehicles, equipment, and facilities in good 
operating order. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Maintenance. 

4. Americans	with	Disabilities	Act	

Basic Requirement: Titles II and III of the ADA of 1990 provide that no entity shall discriminate 
against an individual with a disability in connection with the provision of transportation service. 
The law sets forth specific requirements for vehicle and facility accessibility and the provision of 
service, including complementary paratransit service. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, deficiencies were found with the 
U.S. Department of Transportation (US DOT) requirements for ADA. 

Foothill Transit relies on a county-wide paratransit provider, Access Services, to provide the 
required complementary paratransit services related to the fixed-route transit service. Foothill 
Transit has an appointee on Access Service’s Board, as well as attends meetings and other forums 
in which the paratransit provider presents data on ridership and regional complementary paratransit 



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   7 | 13 

performance. These meetings are also supplemented by the receipt of key service performance 
indicators provided in a monthly report. However, Foothill Transit does not have the means to 
obtain performance data specific to its service area that would ensure that ADA complementary 
paratransit is being operated free of capacity constraints within Foothill Transit’s service area.   

Corrective Actions and Schedule: By October 13, 2017, Foothill Transit must: 

 Demonstrate to the FTA Region IX Regional Civil Rights Officer (RCRO) that it obtains 
from the paratransit provider performance data specific to its service area  

 Submit to the FTA Region IX RCRO a procedure for reviewing paratransit performance 
data for its service area to ensure that the complementary paratransit service provided on 
its behalf is not impacted by capacity constraints. 

5. Title	VI	

Basic Requirement: The grantee must ensure that no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, or 
national origin, be excluded from participating in, or be denied the benefits of, or be subject to 
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance without regard 
to whether specific projects or services are federally funded. The grantee must ensure that federally 
supported transit services and related benefits are distributed in an equitable manner. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Title VI. 

6. Procurement	

Basic Requirement: Grantees use their own procurement procedures that reflect applicable state 
and local laws and regulations, provided that the process ensures competitive procurement and the 
procedures conform to applicable Federal law, including 49 CFR Part 18, (repealed effective 
December 26, 2014), 2 CFR Part 1201, incorporating 2 CFR Part 200 (specifically 
Sections 200.317-200.326), and FTA Circular 4220.1F, “Third Party Contracting Guidance.” 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, deficiencies were found with the FTA 
requirements for Procurement. 

  



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   8 | 13 

During the site visit, two procurement files were reviewed. The following deficiencies were noted: 
 

 

Corrective Actions and Schedule: By October 13, 2017, Foothill Transit must submit the following 
to the FTA Region IX Los Angeles Metropolitan Office: 

 Procedures for making excluded party determinations before entering into applicable 
transactions 

 Documentation that it has updated its procurement process to include performing cost and 
price analysis for every procurement action including contract modifications. 

7. Disadvantaged	Business	Enterprise	

Basic Requirement: The grantee must comply with 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure nondiscrimination in 
the award and administration of US DOT-assisted contracts. Grantees also must create a level 
playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for US DOT-assisted contracts. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the US 
DOT requirements for DBE. 

8. Legal	

Basic Requirement: The grantee must be eligible and authorized under state and local law to 
request, receive, and dispense FTA funds and to execute and administer FTA-funded projects. 
Grantees must comply with Restrictions on Lobbying requirements. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Legal. 

  	

Goods/ 
Services 

Procured 
Date Method Type Amount Comments 

13, 40-foot low-
floor CNG 
fueled high 
occupancy buses 

8/19/2016 

Option Exercise 
for Sole Source 
(separate 
contract) 

Rolling 
Stock 

$11,292,414 

 No SAM search 
prior to award 

 No cost/price 
analysis 

Construction of 
Azusa Park and 
Ride 

9/26/2016 IFB Construction $9,221,000 No issues noted 



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   9 | 13 

9. Satisfactory	Continuing	Control		

Basic Requirement: The grantee must ensure that FTA-funded property will remain available to 
be used for its originally authorized purpose throughout its useful life until disposition. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Satisfactory Continuing Control. 

10. Planning/Program	of	Projects	

Basic Requirement: The grantee must participate in the transportation planning process in 
accordance with FTA requirements, Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act, and 
the metropolitan and statewide planning regulations. Each recipient of a Section 5307 grant shall 
develop, publish, afford an opportunity for a public hearing on, and submit for approval, a program 
of projects (POP). 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Planning/POP. 

11. Public	Comment	on	Fare	Increases	and	Major	Service	Reductions		

Basic Requirement: Section 5307 grantees are expected to have a written, locally developed 
process for soliciting and considering public comment before raising a fare or carrying out a major 
transportation service reduction. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Public Comment on Fare Increases and Major Service Reductions. 

12. Half	Fare	

Basic Requirement: For fixed-route service supported with Section 5307 assistance, fares charged 
seniors, persons with disabilities, or an individual presenting a Medicare card during off peak hours 
will not be more than one half the peak hour fares. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Half Fare. 

13. Charter	Bus	

Basic Requirement: Grantees are prohibited from using federally funded equipment and facilities 
to provide charter service if a registered private charter operator expresses interest in providing the 
service. Grantees are allowed to operate community based charter services excepted under the 
regulations. 



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   10 | 13 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Charter Bus.	

14. School	Bus	

Basic Requirement: Grantees are prohibited from providing exclusive school bus service unless 
the service qualifies and is approved by the FTA Administrator under an allowable exemption. 
Federally funded equipment or facilities cannot be used to provide exclusive school bus service. 
School tripper service that operates and looks like all other regular service is allowed. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for School Bus. 

15. Security	

Basic Requirement: As recipients of Section 5307 funds, grantees must annually certify that they 
are spending at least one percent of such funds for transit security projects or that such expenditures 
for security systems are not necessary. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Security. 

16. Drug	Free	Workplace	and	Drug	and	Alcohol	Program	

Basic Requirement: Grantees are required to maintain a drug-free workplace for all grant-related 
employees and to have an ongoing drug-free awareness program. Grantees receiving Section 5307, 
5309, 5311 or 5339 funds that have safety-sensitive employees must have a drug and alcohol 
testing program in place for such employees. 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for Drug-Free Workplace and Drug and Alcohol Program. 

17. Equal	Employment	Opportunity	

Basic Requirement: The grantee must ensure that no person in the United States shall on the 
grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability be excluded from 
participating in, or denied the benefits of, or be subject to discrimination in employment under any 
project, program, or activity receiving Federal financial assistance under the Federal transit laws. 
(Note: Equal Employment Opportunity Commission’s regulation only identifies/recognizes 
religion and not creed as one of the protected groups.) 

Finding: During this Triennial Review of Foothill Transit, no deficiencies were found with the 
FTA requirements for EEO.  



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   11 | 13 

V. Summary	of	Findings	

Review Area Finding Deficiency Corrective Action Response 
Due Date 

Date  
Closed 

1. Financial 
Management 
and Capacity 

ND     

2. Technical 
Capacity  

ND     

3. Maintenance  ND     
4. ADA  D-165 Insufficient 

oversight of ADA 
complementary 
paratransit service 
requirements 

Foothill Transit must: 
 Demonstrate to the FTA Region IX 

Regional Civil Rights Officer 
(RCRO) that it obtains from the 
paratransit provider performance data 
specific to its service area. 

 Submit to the FTA Region IX RCRO 
a procedure for reviewing paratransit 
performance data for its service area 
to ensure that the complementary 
paratransit service provided on its 
behalf is not impacted by capacity 
constraints. 

10/13/2017  

5. Title VI  ND     

6. Procurement D-183 No verification that 
excluded parties 
are not 
participating 

Foothill Transit must submit to the FTA 
Region IX Los Angeles Metropolitan 
Office procedures for making excluded 
party determinations before entering into 
applicable transactions.  

10/13/2017  

D-271 Lacking required 
cost/price analysis 

Foothill Transit must submit to the FTA 
Region IX Los Angeles Metropolitan 
Office documentation that it has updated 
its procurement process to include 
performing cost and price analysis for 
every procurement action including 
contract modifications. 

10/13/2017  

7. DBE ND     
8.  Legal  ND     
9. Satisfactory 

Continuing 
Control  

ND     

10. Planning/POP  ND     
11. Public 

Comment on 
Fare Increases 
and Major 
Service 
Reductions  

ND     

12. Half Fare  ND     
13. Charter Bus ND     
14. School Bus ND     
15. Security ND     
16. Drug-Free 

Workplace/ 
Drug and 
Alcohol 
Program 

ND     

17. EEO ND     



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   12 | 13 

VI. Attendees	

Name Title Phone 
Number E-mail Address 

Foothill Transit  

Sharlane Bailey Director of Facilities 626-931-7353 sbailey@foothilltransit.org 

Doran Barnes  Executive Director 626-931-7319 dbarnes@foothilltransit.org 

Michelle Caldwell Director of Finance 626-931-7354 mcaldwell@foothilltransit.org 

Felicia Friesema 
Director of Marketing and 
Communications 

626-931-7222 ffriesema@foothilltransit.org 

Katie Gagnon Budget and Grants Manager 626-931-7250 kgagnon@foothilltransit.org 

LaShawn Gillespie 
Director of Operations and 
Customer Service 

626-931-7306 lgillespie@foothilltransit.org 

Lillian Lin Procurement Specialist 626-931-7266 llin@foothilltransit.org 

Kevin McDonald Deputy Executive Director 626-931-7301 kmcdonald@foothilltransit.org 

Chris Pieper Procurement Manager 626-931-7203 cpieper@foothilltransit.org 

Joseph Raquel Director of Planning 626-931-7326 jraquel@foothilltransit.org 

Jarrett Stoltzfus 
Director of Policy and 
Strategic Sourcing 

626-931-7336 jstoltzfus@foothilltransit.org 

Gil Victorio Controller 626-931-7327 gvictorio@foothilltransit.org 

Anthony Anderson General Counsel 202-585-6928 aanderson@thompsoncoburn.com 

Transdev  

Fermin Mora Maintenance Manager 
626-357-7912 
Ext. 266 

fermin.mora@transdev.com 

FTA  

Ray Tellis Director 213-202-3956 ray.tellis@dot.gov 

Marisa Appleton 
Regional Civil Rights Officer 
for Oversight 

312-705-1270 marisa.appleton@dot.gov 

Lynette Little Regional Civil Rights Officer 415-734-9464 lynette.little@dot.gov 

Charlene Lee 
Lorenzo 

Transportation Program 
Specialist 

213-202-3952 charlene.leelorenzo@dot.gov 

Stacy Alameida 
Transportation Program 
Specialist 

213-202-3953 stacy.alameida@dot.gov 

AdSTM, Inc. 

Grace Stegall Reviewer 347-528-6912 grace.stegall@adstm.com 

  



 

2017	Triennial Review – Foothill Transit	   13 | 13 

VII. Appendices	

No appendices included in this report. 

















 

Agenda Item No. 20 

 
 

Attachment A 
 
 
   

  Capital Cost 
(Shared) 

Operating 

  Annual Cost Annual Savings 

 Fuel            $          140,000 

 Operating Contracts      $         690,000 

 Property Lease    $    343,200    

 Security    $      38,400    

 Temporary Restroom    $       12,000   

 Cleaning    $        6,000   

 Striping  $       10,000     

 Slab/Foundation Demolition  $      119,000     

 Concrete Slab Replacement  $     153,000     
 Pavement Repairs   $      25,000     

 ROW Improvements  $      30,000     
 Clean Up    $        5,000      
 A&E    $      70,000      
 Contingency    $      82,000      

 Total     $   494,000     $   399,600   $        830,000 

  $                                 430,400 

   
 























Attachment A

Evaluation Factors
Maximum 

Score Celtis Pulsar Sensis Geographics
ETA 

Agency Nostrum

1.  Experience 30 21.84 25.92 24.54 20.64 20.34 21.24
2.  Work Plan and Project 
Approach

25 20.55 19.10 20.90 18.00 17.85 17.25

3.  Key Personnel and 
Management Structure

25 19.95 18.10 18.55 17.20 17.00 14.25

Technical Score 80 62.34 63.12 63.99 55.84 55.19 52.74
Price Score 20 15.37 20.00 14.09 18.42 11.48 14.31

Overall Score 100 77.71 83.12 78.08 74.26 66.67 67.05

3 1 2 4 6 5

Proposer

Rank



Attachment B 

Scope of Services 

Background 

The mission of Foothill Transit is to be the premier public transit provider committed to 
safety, courtesy, quality, responsiveness, efficiency and innovation.  With 361 buses 
(344 Compressed Natural Gas or CNG and 17 fast-charge electric) in service, Foothill 
Transit is the largest municipal operator in Los Angeles County, second in fleet size only 
to regional provider Metro.  Foothill Transit serves more than 14 million riders a year in 
the San Gabriel and Pomona Valley.   

Foothill Transit is seeking a full-service marketing/advertising agency (“Agency”) to 
serve as advisor and partner to the Foothill Transit Marketing and Communications 
team.  The selected Agency will be asked to develop a strategic marketing plan that will 
complement Foothill Transit’s business plan initiatives. Though different products and 
services will be outlined, they should always be designed to meet the following 
objectives: 

 Build on Foothill Transit’s brand image  
 Increase ridership   
 Increase awareness and support of Foothill Transit’s services and/or initiatives 

General Marketing Program 

The general marketing program is designed to increase overall awareness of Foothill 
Transit’s brand identity throughout its service area. The Agency will develop an overall 
strategic marketing plan each year to complement Foothill Transit’s business plan.  The 
marketing plan will expand the current creative concepts and design artwork to target 
markets identified through research and data analysis. The Agency shall make 
recommendations and define methods for communicating and advertising to those 
target markets.  Advertising media may include, but is not limited to signage, 
newspapers, direct mail, streaming and digital media, banners and billboard, and cable 
television. Specific marketing campaigns will be developed to keep the program fresh 
and responsive.  As part of the general marketing program, Agency tasks may include 
but are not limited to the following: 

 Provide quarterly updates, attend regular meetings, and/or establish 
milestone dates for projects 
 

 Develop methods and means of customer education (fare changes, 
demonstrations, etc.)  
 

 Develop methods for evaluating and measuring marketing effectiveness and 
performance 
 



 Provide advice and assistance on matters pertaining to marketing and public 
relations 
 

 Utilize past materials, designs, brand standards, research and data analysis, 
and other planning tools/resources to gain understanding of market and 
produce effective strategies 
 

 Adhere to the Foothill Transit brand standards guide 
 

 Source photography (custom or stock) and ensure proper usage terms  
 

 Provide art and creative direction for custom photography and video 
production 
 

 Become familiar with or have knowledge of the service area 
 

Fleet Livery Adaptations 

As Foothill Transit continues to advance its pledge to go all-electric by 2030, the agency 
will be acquiring new vehicles with new body types that will need new livery applications 
that use both the standard fleet graphics and promotional graphics to grab attention.  
During the three year term of this contract, it is estimated that Foothill Transit may 
require as many as three new livery applications for new vehicles.  It will be the 
Agency’s responsibility to work with Foothill Transit’s selected livery application 
contractor to design graphics that best conform to Foothill Transit’s fleet branding. 
 
Strategic Media Purchasing 

Media buying in accordance with a strategic marketing plan will be required, including 
consideration of the target market.  The Agency will research, plan, execute and 
implement advertising in finished form, in accordance with Foothill Transit’s prior written 
approval, and forward same to production and media with proper instructions.  The 
Agency should traffic and disperse all necessary materials to media suppliers, printers, 
and all other third parties needed to accomplish Foothill Transit’s  approved marketing 
communications, and advertising ideas, programs, and campaigns.  Media buying may 
include but are not limited to the following tasks: 
 

 Provide media information and plans that are standard to the transit industry 
 

 Provide media plans with buy detail, including placement dates, demographic 
analysis, circulation/readership figures, proposed added value, etc.  
 

 Seek out and identify media opportunities such as promotions and other 
editorial opportunities 
 

 Proof-read and monitor ads for run verification  
 



 Process and verify purchase orders and invoices in a timely manner 
 

 Obtain prior approval for all and any subcontractors 
 

 Provide media production services (graphic design, photography, copywriting, 
printing, etc.) 
 

 Manage media production process from concept to delivery in timely and 
efficient manger 
 

 Manage talent, photography, and music contracts and licenses 
 

 Advise on content and design of media material and assist in selecting 
appropriate media types for advertising  
 

 Establish advertising schedule and develop media buying plan based on 
defined target market and demographic/customer research 

 
Class Pass Program and Special Services Campaigns 

The Class Pass Program is Foothill Transit’s highly successful college student ridership 
program, which is currently in place at three colleges in the San Gabriel Valley – Mt. 
San Antonio College, Citrus College, and University of La Verne.  Expansion to other 
schools during the term of this contract is highly likely, and will require careful 
consideration of each campus’ demographics, transit access, and communication tools.  
Each year will require a review and overhaul of the Class Pass campaigns, with special 
attention paid to Class Pass and campus branding. All on campus placement of media 
materials, school scheduling and communications, student paper media buys, and any 
other direct campus activities will be handled by the Foothill Transit Team.   

In addition to the Class Pass, Foothill Transit operates special seasonal services for the 
Rose Bowl and the LA County Fair.  Strategic campaigns to enhance visibility and 
ridership of these and any new special services will need to be established and then 
refreshed each year. 
 
Customer and General Demographic Research 

Foothill Transit will conduct periodic customer satisfaction and demographic surveys to 
use as an indication of where customer service improvements are necessary, to define 
the Foothill Transit customer, and identify new potential markets for ridership growth. 
The Agency will work with Foothill Transit’s chosen research consultants and Foothill 
Transit staff to incorporate questions that will provide the data needed (but will not be 
required to conduct any surveys). It will require detailed oversight and input from the 
Agency to get the most out of the data collected by the research consultants. 

 



Digital Communication Strategy 

During the course of the contract there are specific web-based and social media 
activities that will be conducted on behalf of Foothill Transit.  In addition the selected 
Agency is to work with the specialized web-based and smartphone compatible social 
media tools that Foothill Transit currently uses to execute its digital communications 
programs (i.e. Instagram, Facebook, Twitter, Snapchat, Pinterest, Google +, and 
Youtube).  These tasks may include but are not limited to the following:  

 Provide recommendations for Foothill Transit’s websites and current social media 
pages to build recognition, traffic, and reach, and to increase understanding of 
the agency’s services and programs in conjunction with Foothill Transit’s 
marketing and customer communications objectives 

o Advise and implement improved integration between various technologies 
o Identify and implement new social media technologies 
o Review and revise all new media endeavors to work concurrently into one 

unified online communications package (New media is generically defined 
as, but is not limited to Foothill Transit’s website, Facebook pages, Twitter 
feeds, website, YouTube channel, and Flickr page.  It also includes social 
media technologies not currently employed by Foothill Transit.) 

 
 Research, recommend and implement appropriate social media and interactive 

technology applications that will effectively advance Foothill Transit’s marketing 
and communications objectives.  

o Special focus should be given to any emerging social media tool (i.e. 
Snapchat and Instagram) that expands Foothill Transit’s reach within the 
service area 

o The investigation and strategic implementation of seeding Foothill Transit 
information on news aggregators. 
 

 Provide recommendations and strategies for content development  that improves 
the effectiveness of agency communications in a social media environment and 
educates appropriate staff on how to develop and evolve this content 

o Research and strategize targeting content towards key audiences such as 
but not limited to veterans, tourists, the elderly, and students – both K-12 
and college. 

o Research, define, and strategize social media outreach to minority 
communities as defined by Title VI regulations governed by the Federal 
Transit Administration and work with agency staff to ensure compliance 
 

 Develop and/or edit creative and technical content for all Foothill Transit social 
media pages and website 

 







Attachment A 

 

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

El Monte Pomona Puente Hills West Covina On-line

N
et

 s
al

es

January

February

March



Attachment B 

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

Foothill Transit Cash Purse EZ Pass Metrolink Metro
(Passes/Tokens)

Omnitrans

N
et

 s
al

es
Sales Trends by Product

January 2017

February 2017

March 2017



Attachment C 

 

22 22
20

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

January 2017 February 2017 March 2017

T
im

e 
to

 a
ns

w
er

 (
se

co
nd

s)
Average Time to Answer



Attachment D 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

January 2017 February 2017 March 2017

C
us

to
m

er
 c

al
ls

 t
o

 T
ra

ns
it

 S
to

re
s

Total Calls Answered

Calls Answered Calls Received



Attachment E 

 

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

Puente Hills El Monte Pomona West Covina

V
o

lu
m

e 
o

f 
w

al
k-

in
 c

us
to

m
er

s

Total Walk-in Traffic

January 2017

February 2017

March 2017


	Agenda
	Minutes for May 26, 2017 - Joint Annual Governing & Executive Board Meetings
	Minutes for May 26, 2017 - Special Executive Board Meeting
	Item 9: May 2017 Financial Statements and Investment Summary 
	Item 10: May 2017 Performance Indicators Report 
	Item 11: June 2017 Legislative Summary 
	Item 12: Title VI Analysis for October 2017 Service Changes 
	Item 13: Title VI Analysis for October 2017 Fare Restructuring 
	Item 14: Foothill Transit Administrative Offices Electric Vehicle Charging Update 
	Item 15: Contract Amendment - 13 Electric Bus Procurement 
	Item 16: Contract Award - On-Call Architectural & Engineering Services
	Item 17: Contract Award - Arcadia Electric Bus Plug-In Charging Stations
	Item 18: Federal Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Triennial Review Draft Report
	Item 19: Los Angeles-San Bernardino Inter-County Study Update
	Item 20: Property Lease - Downtown Los Angeles Midday Layover
	Item 21: Contract Award - CNG Bus Procurement
	Item 22: Duarte City Transit Service
	Item 23: Real Estate Acquisition - Covina Transit Center and Park & Ride Project
	Item 24: Contract Award - General Marketing Services
	Item 25: Transit Store Quarterly Report



